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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment portfolio
including property investment and development, mining and
other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has fully-integrated production plant in China
with around 682 staff as at 30 June 2017. Our facility is
best known for their quality with extensive capabilities in
jewellery design, direct stone sourcing, lapidary, alloying and
gold refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the financial year ended 30 June 2017, the Group's
consolidated revenue recorded an increase of approximately
HK$74.7 million or 13.5% from last year of HK$552.6
million to HK$627.3 million. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the properties sale of HK$133.5
million. During the year, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$98.3 million, as compared to the loss
attributable to owners of HK$175.7 million in last year. The
profit for the year was mainly due to the one-off gain arising
from the disposal of a subsidiary of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$22.3 million, and share of profit of joint
venture of approximately HK$123.0 million mainly arising
from change in fair value of the investment property held by
the Group's joint venture. The basic earnings per share was
HK1.44 cent (2016: Basic loss per share of HK2.57 cent).
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The financial year ended 30 June 2017 continued to be
challenging as the global market sentiment remained weak
for high-end luxury goods. Brexit and political instability also
weakened the consumer demand in United Kingdom and
some European countries. While the United States showed
mere signs of economic recovery, the pace remained slow
and may take a longer time to uplift the luxury segment.
As a result, the Group's revenue on trading of fine jewellery
and diamond polishing business recorded a decrease of
approximately HK$60.1 million or 11.1% from approximately
HK$543.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2016 to
approximately HK$483.1 million for 2017. Of the HK$60.1
million decrease, approximately HK$34.3 million or 57.1%
was a result of the downsizing of the diamond polishing
business. In view of the rising labor costs as well as the
continued softness of the diamond market, the management
decided to cease the diamond polishing business and will
focus on trading and distribution of fine jewellery in the
future. As of May 2017, the Group has suspended the
diamond polishing operations.

In the property investment, the Group has sold the
Continental Place, a property located at No. 236-242 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong (”Continental Place”),
with total consideration of approximately HK$1,133.5
million (including the 3 pre-sold floors of HK$133.5 million
classified as revenue) and recognised segment profit of
approximately HK$40.1 million during the financial year
of 2017. The Group has always been seeking potential
investment opportunities in order to maximize returns to our
shareholders. Following the disposal of Continental Place,
the Group has decided to reinvest on another property
site for potential future gains. On 17 July 2017, the Group
has entered in to a preliminary agreement to acquire a
piece of land located at No. 232 Wan Chai Road, Hong
Kong, with a site area of approximately 5,798 sqg. ft. It is
the current intention of the Group to redevelop the land
into a premium grade office and retail composite building
of approximately 25-storey tall with a gross floor area of
approximately 86,970 sq. ft. and to hold it for long term
leasing investment purpose. The total consideration was
approximately HK$1,180 million (subject to the adjustment)
and the transaction is expected to be completed on 25
October 2017.
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In the PRC, the 50% joint venture development project
located in Yangpu District of Shanghai — “Bauhinia Square”
is an eleven-floored shopping mall with total gross floor
area of approximately 97,265 sg.m. and over 500 parking
spaces. The Bauhinia Square offers a diverse retail mix of
food and beverage, lifestyle tenants, fast fashion, children’s
education, karaoke, cinema and a full scale super market.
Retail spaces are over 95% leased out. Rental revenue is
stable and has achieved a double-digit year-on-year growth
since its opening in 2016. During the year under review,
the Group recorded a share of profit of joint ventures of
approximately HK$123.0 million, compared to the share of
loss of HK$111.8 million for last year. The profit was mainly
attributable to the gain arising on change in fair value of the
investment property held by the Group's joint venture.

For our mining business, the operation at Hongzhuang
Gold Mine was minimized. All of the previously reported
gold resources in the Yuanling site had been exhausted.
Activities such as re-visiting the old shaft and feasibility study
of developing new shafts are being conducted. Meanwhile,
second phase exploration was carried out at the north
eastern part of Yuanling this year and Company will review
the exploration result next year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Going forward, we foresee that the consumer demand
will remain soft until mid 2018, especially for the luxury
segment. It is also expected that a further consolidation of
the diamond and jewellery industry will take place. In view
of such, the Group will continue to strengthen its market
position and relationships with customers. Our teams will
constantly develop innovative products while enhancing our
quality and service. At the same time, our management is
actively seeking for potential business opportunities that will
help generate better returns and value in the future. The
Board believes that the investment projects will potentially
generate greater value to the Company and its shareholders.
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IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

1.

At 30 June 2017, the Group held an equity interest
in Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"”), MMS is
an Australian company listed on the TSX Venture
Exchange in Canada. The Group holds the interest
in MMS for long term investment and accounted for
as a non-current asset as “available-for-sale financial
assets”. During the year, the fair value of MMS was
determined to be impaired on the basis of significant
and prolonged decline in its fair value below cost.
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$620,000 (2016:
HK$457,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

On 15 January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company
entered into a subscription agreement to subscribe
for 55,556 shares in the share capital of a technology
company (“Technology Company”) at a consideration
of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,753,000). The Technology Company is mainly
engaged in hardware and software technologies
relating to diamonds, diamond packaging and
diamond marketing development business. The
Group holds the interest in the Technology Company
for long-term investment and accounts for it as
“available-for-sale financial assets” in non-current
assets.
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Taking into consideration the fact that the Technology
Company had incurred substantial operating losses
since its incorporation in 2014, the Board considered
it is appropriate to make an impairment loss of
HK$7,753,000 (2016: Nil), representing the total
investment cost of the equity investment in the
Technology Company.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

As at 30 June 2017, the Directors conducted an impairment
assessment on certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment under Yuanling mine site due to the delay of
the operation plan. These assets are included in the Group's
mining segment in the reportable and operating segment of
the Group. Accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$23.4 million had been recognised in respect of certain
property, plant and equipment in mining segment of the
Group. The impairment loss had been recognised and
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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ANNUAL UPDATE ON DETAILS OF RESOURCES
AND/OR RESERVES UNDER RULES OF 18.15, 18.17
AND 18.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no material change on the resources and/or
reserves of the Group during the year. The following table
shows the details of resources and/or reserves of the Group
as at 30 June 2017:

RLER
Type of ELERE HEED
WwEAH mining Gold  Reporting Egmil
Reporting date operation resources  Standard Gold grade
(Hg) (%/1)
() (911

“E—tF T 1073 FEIRE 1220 5.58
NA=TH Underground PRC 122b

30 June 2017 546  HEIFE33 1.89
PRC 332

2466  HEIFE333 446
PRC 333

“E—tF wh - FERE 1220 -

~NA=TH Underground PRC 122b

30 June 2017 - FERE333 -
PRC 333

Factors and assumptions such as gold grade, ore body
thickness and shape of vein were considered for estimating
the resources and/or reserves. Please refer to Section 8
of Appendix VIl of the circular of the Company dated 25
January 2010 for further information of the resources and/or
reserves estimation.

* The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2017, the Group's gearing ratio was zero
(2016: 0.32), which is calculated on net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the
sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group maintains a strong financial position
with cash and cash equivalents of HK$374,648,000 (2016:
HK$45,632,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, Renminbi and British Pound. Bank
loans were HK$119,000,000 (2016: HK$571,548,000),
which were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Other
borrowings in respect of amounts due to related companies
and loan from a controlling shareholder were approximately
of HK$87,218,000 (2016: HK$299,760,000). The bank loans
are secured by first legal charges over the Group's investment
property, certain leasehold land and buildings, land use rights
and guaranteed by corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.

The substantial increase in the Group’s cash and cash
equivalent and the reduction in borrowings as at 30 June
2017 were mainly attributed to the net proceeds received
from the disposal of Continental Place. With the cash yet
to be utilised and in line with the Group’s prudent financial
management, the Directors considered that the Group has
sufficient working capital to meet its ongoing operational
requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2017, the Group's investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings and land use rights with an
aggregate net carrying value of HK$51,236,000 (2016:
HK$1,065,250,000) were pledged to certain banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined with reference
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or Prime Rate for
Hong Kong Dollar borrowings, and the benchmark lending
rate of the People’s Bank of China for Renminbi borrowings.
The Group also made use of foreign exchange forward
contracts in order to minimize exchange rate risk as a result
of fluctuation in British Pound. There was no change to the
Group's capital structure during the year ended 30 June
2017. In light of the current financial position of the Group
and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance, the
management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 19 September 2016, the Group had entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with
an independent third party relating to dispose of 100%
equity interest of Well Friendship Investment Limited
("Well Friendship”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), which holds the Group’s investment property
and property under development, at total consideration
of HK$1,133,500,000, subject to certain adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The details
of the disposal were set out in the announcement and the
circular of the Company dated 21 September 2016 and 28
October 2016 respectively.
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NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS

1.

Provision of Guarantee in Favour of a Bank

On 9 September 2016, the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a new guarantee agreement to
guarantee up to 50% of a term loan facility granted
by a bank to a subsidiary of a joint venture of the
Company (the “JV Subsidiary”). The JV Subsidiary
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with a bank to provide a term loan
facility of RMB773,300,000, which was utilised for
refinancing of all the previous term loans. As a result,
the Company was required to provide guarantee
of RMB386,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$448,500,000 at prevailing rate), representing up
to 50% of the new facility, to secure for the due and
punctual performance of all obligations of the JV
Subsidiary under the Facility Agreement. The details
of the provision of the guarantee was set out in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 9
September 2016 and 3 October 2016 respectively.



Chairman’s Statement m XfEH S5

2. HE—RBWEAR

RZZE—R"FNLA+NB XK
RNE—FHE2EMBAR (1EA
B [BEA —%BIF
=5 (EREFR TERFR
rpa (ERE R ZHERA)
AN BRMEEZE B
- BEREEBRERERE -
MEAEAKERZELHER
NE—FEMBAR (FELARN
EBLRZOOEBESHEEF
[MEAAF L) 2 28 E TR
K42 (E A1,133,500,000
BT (BREZEEESERE
W 5} I8 /133,500,000 7T )
(MEEEE]) RIE LT
Al HEBBEBRARRZIE
BEAHE BER_ZT—XF
+—AZ+NAhBEARFZ
BREEFRARE FARERR
ARIE - HEFEEN-Z
—RNE+—A=+H%K - H
EFEZFBHEHNAAFHA
HAE-_T—RNFNLA=-+—
AzRERBBHAE-ZT—X
F+AZTNHZBHA-

R IR RR M 2B

R_ZE—+FRA=+H BREZE
B ((RELDRAAARA—@BE2
EMBRARIBRN CERABARK
4,000,0007T (#8557 44,606,000
BIL) BERAEERR RERER
—E—+F+A-+HHEE-

2. Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 19 September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as vendor (the “Vendor”), an
independent third party as the purchaser (the
“Purchaser”) and the Company as guarantor of
the Vendor, has entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share
capital of a subsidiary of the Company, which holds
“Continental Place”, a 29-storey commercial building
located in Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,133,500,000 (including the 3
pre-sold floors of HK$133,500,000) (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal, which constitutes a very substantial
disposal for the Company under the Listing Rules
and was approved by way of poll at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting on 29 November
2016. Completion of the Disposal took place on 30
November 2016. The details of the Disposal were
set out in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 21 September 2016 and 28 October
2016 respectively.

ADVANCE FROM A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2017, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
("Dr. Chan”) has advanced a loan in the amount of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,606,000)
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 25 October 2017.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees to the extent of
HK$119,000,000 (2016: HK$571,548,000) with respect
to bank loans to its subsidiaries. Guarantee to the extent
of RMB358,425,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$412,763,000) (2016: RMB371,537,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$433,769,000)) was also given by the
Company in favour of a bank in respect of the term loan
facilities granted to a subsidiary of a joint venture of the
Company. Under the guarantees, the Company would be
liable to pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover the
loans. At the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s
obligation under the guarantee contract has been made as
the directors considered that it was unlikely the repayment of
the loans would be in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2017, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments of approximately HK$696,000 (2016:
HK$13,753,000), which was mainly the capital commitments
in relation to property, plant and equipment to the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 17 July 2017, the Group had entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party relating to acquisition of 100%
equity interest of Ontrack Ventures Limited and its
subsidiary, which principal asset was a piece of land at No.
232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong, at total consideration
of HK$1,180,000,000, subject to certain adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The details
of the acquisition were set out in the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 18 July 2017 and 25
September 2017 respectively.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICIES
AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group employs a total of approximately 828 employees
with the majority in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration to
its employees is largely based on common industrial practice.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 13
July 2010, under which, the Company may grant options
to eligible persons including directors and employees.
120,000,000 share options were granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption and up to 30 June 2017.

The purpose of the share option scheme is (i) to recruit
and retain high calibre eligible persons and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group; (i) to recognize the
contributions of eligible persons to the growth of the Group
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and (iii) to motivate and to give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group.
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The total number of shares available for issue under the share
option scheme was 192,830,334 which represented 2.82%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
annual report. The number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
shares in issue at the adoption date.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of a share option to subscribe for shares of
the Company shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending 12 July 2020, after which no
further options will be granted.
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As at 30 June 2017, 120,000,000 share options have been
granted to certain directors of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.138, HK$0.121, HK$0.245 or HK$0.149 each
subject to the terms of the Company’s share option scheme.
10,000,000 share options have been exercised during the
year ended 30 June 2015 since the grant of the share
options. Details of movement of the share options up to 30
June 2017 are set out below:

BREZE
Number of share options
~ RZF—RE RZF—t%&
~ FHAH tA—B ~ ~A=+H
REABEE (AB/R/#%) T BRITHEE 2EHR RERRY RENTHE bd ]
Balance Granted Exercised Balance
Date of Grant Exercisable Exercise Price as at During During as at
Name of Grantee (dd/mm/yyyy)  Period per Share  1July 2016 the Year the Year 30 June 2017
(1)
(HKS)
B EE 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
REHLt 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 18/06/2024
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
FEEEE 07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Yam Tat Wing 06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
BEERLE 25/07/2014 25/07/2014 - 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Wong Edward 24/07/2024
Gwon-hing
07/07/2015 07/07/2015 - 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
06/07/2025
03/11/2016 03/11/2016 - 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
02/11/2026
70,000,000 40,000,000 - 110,000,000
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Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial
risk management and the market risk had been kept to
minimum. With the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all
transactions and the borrowings of the Group are primarily
denominated in US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group had entered into certain foreign
exchange forward contracts in order to minimise the
exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation in British Pound.
Management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
risk in British Pound and recent fluctuation in Renminbi and
will take appropriate actions when necessary.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM")
will be held on Tuesday, 5 December 2017 and the Notice
of AGM will be published and despatched in the manner
as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 1 December 2017 to Tuesday, 5
December 2017, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30
November 2017.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Directors

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 September 2017
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, was appointed as Chairman of
the Group since 2017. He joined the Group in 2000 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2006.
He currently strategizes the direction of the Group and also
provides leadership to the Board. He manages and oversees
the overall Group operations and is responsible in leading
the management on various aspects of the Group such
as sales and marketing, product development, investment
and financing activities, as well as corporate and business
development, etc.

Mr. Chan holds a number of public and honorary positions,
such as Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade
Manufacturers Association; Founding Chairman of the Youth
Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
Member of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council; Executive Committee
member of Federation of Hong Kong Industries; and
President of Entrepreneurs’ Organization (Hong Kong and
China South Chapters). He was appointed as a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2013. He is also a Director of
Hong Kong United Youth Association.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry for several years. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree with double majors in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance from Babson College in
Boston, Massachusetts. Mr. Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.
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Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is Founder of the
Group. Dr. Chan is an Executive Director of the Company and
holds directorship in various subsidiaries of the Company. He
is responsible for strategic planning, corporate development
and investment of the Group. Dr. Chan has over 50 years
of experience in the jewellery industry. He is currently the
Honorary Permanent President of the Hong Kong Jewellery
& Jade Manufacturers Association; Honorary Member of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd.; Appointed
Member and Institutional Advancement and Outreach
Committee Member of the University Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology; as well as a
member of other trade associations. In community, charitable
and political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent
Honorary Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association
Ltd., and Member of The Association of Chairmen of The
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed
a Committee Member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference during 2003-2016;
and the Founding President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese
Enterprise Federation since 2006. Dr. Chan is the husband of
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, is the Managing Director and
Co-Founder of the Group. Ms. Cheng is an Executive Director
of the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for the daily operations,
financial management, corporate development, sales and
marketing as well as strategic planning of the Group. Ms.
Cheng has over 45 years of experience in the jewellery
industry and has been actively involved in the business
development of the Group since the beginning. Ms. Cheng
also plays an active role in the community, currently 2nd
Vice President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong (2016-2018),
and Executive Committee and Honorary Vice President of
the Hong Kong Federation of Women. In addition, she was
awarded as one of the “100 Chinese Outstanding WWomen
Entrepreneurs” in 2006 and was a Committee Member of
the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles.
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Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995. She
is an Executive Director of the Company and is responsible
for property development in Hong Kong, retail operation
and the business administration functions in the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from University of California, Berkeley
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Ms. Chan
is a Graduate Gemologist of the Gemological Institute
of America. She is Charter President of Zonta Club of
Hong Kong Il and Area Director of Zonta International
(2010-2012), actively involved in the Zonta Community. She
is also a member of Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur
Association. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing, joined the Group in
1998, and has been appointed as Executive Director of
the Company since 1 March 2014. He is also the General
Manager of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr,
Wong has over 30 years experience in manufacturing, sales
marketing and management in jewellery industry. Mr. Wong
is responsible for overall development and management of
the Group's jewellery business.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yam Tat Wing, joined the Group in 2011 as General
Manager — Business Development and Mining of the Group,
was appointed as Executive Director on 1 March 2014
and was re-designated as Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2017. Mr. Yam was educated up
to matriculation and he obtained a certificate in Personnel
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yam had served in the Hong
Kong Police Force (the “Force”) for over 37 years, he was
previously Deputy Commissioner, Operations from January
2007 to March 2010. Mr. Yam has extensive experience in
leadership, public administration and crisis management.

During his career in the Force, Mr. Yam was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star Medal, Colonial Police Long
Service Medal with 3rd clasp, the Colonial Police Medal
for Meritorious Service, the Hong Kong Police Medal for
Distinguished Service and Chief Executives Commendation.
In August 2011, he was appointed an Affiliated Fellow of
Wu Yee Sun College of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
for a term of five years. The appointment has been extended
for another term of five years in August 2016. He was also
appointed as Executive Board member, Hong Kong Air Cadet
Corps with effect from 2 December 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 40 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he has also actively involved in the community
services of Hong Kong and has served several advisory
bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 30 years. He
was subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government in the year 2007. Mr. Yu
is the Chairman and an Executive Director of K. H. Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code:1557), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a Founder and Director of various logistic companies and
was a Director of a private company engaging in logistics and
forwarding.
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Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze
graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from
University of Wisconsin-La Crosse, United States in 1985. Mr.
Sze has extensive experience in investment and corporate
management and is currently a Non-executive Director of
China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3778) and Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 761) and an Independent Non-executive Director
of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
25), these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
is also an Executive Director of a private company, Hang
Tung Resources Holding Limited, and holds directorship
in various private companies. Mr. Sze is a member of the
National Committee and an executive member of the Beijing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and currently the Permanent Honorary President
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
He is also elected as a member of Election Committee of
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of Peace and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2011 and 2015
respectively.

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr.
Cheung is currently the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of China Weaving Materials Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3778). He is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1557), both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
has over 25 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor
at the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004
to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an Executive Director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited (now known as Digital
Domain Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 547), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief
Financial Officer from March 2007 to February 2008. He was
an Independent Director of LJ International Inc. (NASDAQ:
JADE), a company listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to
October 2007. From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr.
Cheung was a Director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited (now
known as Quants Capital (Hong Kong) Limited), a subsidiary
of e-Lux Corporation (JASDAQ: 6811) (now known as
Quants Inc.), in charge of value-added telecommunications
services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and China. He was the group
financial controller and a director of New Media Corporation,
a subsidiary of e-New Media Company Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 128) (now known
as ENM Holdings Limited) from 1995 to 1999 and 1999 to
2000, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, FGA, DGA, FGAHK, CG
(Diamond), joined the Group in 1987, is the Head of Group
Operations. He has over 30 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the

jewellery industry. He holds gemmologist qualification, and

is fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain;
director of The Gemmological Association of Hong Kong;
and appointed as RPL Assessor at Qualifications Framework
of jewellery industry by Vocational Training Council.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge of the implementation of I1SO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined the Group in 1976,
was the Head of Operation of Continental Jewellery
(Mfg.) Limited. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in
managing jewellery factories. He has extensive knowledge
in all production aspects as well as in logistic management.
He oversaw the daily operations of the jewellery factories in
China.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The board of directors
(the "Board”) considers shareholders can maximise their
benefits from good corporate governance.

The Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules set out the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year
ended 30 June 2017, the Company has complied with the
Code, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1,
A.4.1, A6.7 and C.2.5 which are explained in the following
relevant paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY'S PRACTICES

A.1. The Board

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for its leadership and control
and be collectively responsible for promoting its success by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors should take
decisions objectively in the best interests of the issuer.

The board should regularly review the contribution required
from a director to perform his responsibilities to the issuer,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing them.
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EEEREEZT—tFA=T The Board held four meetings during the financial year

HIEFHRFEFERNRITTHRGH - ended 30 June 2017. Attendance of individual Director at
BHE-_ZT—tFA=THLETK the Board meetings, other Board Committee meetings, the
FE EX99% EFT9ETAM annual general meeting (“2016 AGM"), and extraordinary
Zeggxm RRAFRKg([ZF general meeting of the Company held on 29 November

—RNERRBAFRE]) RAREIR 2016 during financial year ended 30 June 2017 are as
—E-RE+T-—AZtThBERITZ follows:
BREMNAREFENES ZLER

AT
BHLERITRE
Meetings Attended / Held
ZE-RE
ENZEE FMZEE REZEE BR® BR®
e a-F - E-f E-f HAKE BEXE
2016
Meetings of ~ Meeting of ~ Meeting of  Extraordinary Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
= Director Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
HITEF Executive Directors
REVEAE Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor 44 - - - 11 i
BREEE L 8BS AT#T Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, 8BS, JP 44 - - 1 1 1n
L3 Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 44 - n - 1n 1N
REEL+ Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 44 - - - 1 i
HEREE Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing 44 - - - 1 1
HHTEF Non-executive Director
EER A Mr. Yan Tat Wing* 44 - - - 1 1n
BUHNTEE Indlependent Non-executive Directors
AREER 5L 8BS MBE- ATt Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, 8BS, MBE, P 3/4 20 1l - 17 1
3] ke Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 444 2R 1N 1N 17 1
MEERIES & BBS ATHT Mr. Sze Irons, 88S, JP 44 2 17n - o1 o1
REBEE Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 44 2 - 1N 17 17
* FELEEDHPTESATRIE * Mr. Yam Tat Wing was redesignated from Executive Director to
WTEE B=E—+tF—HF—H Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.
AR .
EEeTHeRRE 2 EE KK Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
HMEEEET - regular Board meetings.
EREEse e BHELE Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
+ BRI LErREEE s 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
MegrTlE ERMEEMES Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
e JeFAERRRNELE meetings, reasonable notice will be given.
AR -
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Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committee
meetings are duly kept and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings have recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be present at such Board
meeting.

The Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company.

A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of business. There should be a clear division
of these responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual.
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Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (“Mr. Victor Chan”), an Executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as the Chairman
with effect from 1 January 2017. Mr. Victor Chan currently
strategizes the direction of the Group and also provides
leadership for the Board. He ensures that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. Mr. Victor Chan is also responsible to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and that all Directors receive adequate information,
which must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (“Ms. Cheng”) is the Managing
Director of the Company. She is responsible for day-to-day
management and the marketing activities of the Group.

Although the Company does not have a post for Chief
Executive Officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

A.3. Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate for the requirements
of the issuer’s business. It should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.
It should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. Non-executive directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.
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As at 30 June 2017, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles ("Dr. Chan"”), Ms. Cheng, Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
("Ms. Vicki Chan"”) and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing; one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yam Tat Wing; four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu
Tin, Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors are expressly identified
by categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Victor Chan is the brother of Ms. Vicki Chan. They are
the son and daughter, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms.
Cheng. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 25 to 31 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.

A list containing the names of the Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.continental.com.hk.

A.4. Appointments, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors. There
should be plans in place for orderly succession for
appointments. All directors should be subject to re-election at
regular intervals. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election.
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Mr. Yam Tat Wing was re-designated from Executive Director
to Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting at least
once every three years in accordance with articles 115(A) and
115(D) of the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Board considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1
is not material as Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors are subjected to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years and re-election.

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation by the Nomination Committee of the
Company or by shareholders in a general meeting. The
nomination procedures by shareholders are published on the
website of the Company at www.continental.com.hk. Any
Director who is appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after their appointment, and
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All candidates
must be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independent criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. To further enhance accountability
under code provision A.4.3, any further re-appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director who has served the
Company'’s Board for more than nine years will be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Both of Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Yu Shiu Tin,
Paul have served as Independent Non-executive Directors
for more than 9 years. While, Mr. Sze Irons has served as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
October 2008, which is close to 9 years’ of service. Mr. Chan
Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze Irons
met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek,
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze Irons a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
they have not engaged in any daily executive management
of the Group. They continue to demonstrate the attributes
of an Independent Non-executive Director by providing
independent view and advice and there is no evidence that
their tenure have had any impact on their independence.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope of
work in the past years, the Directors consider Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze Irons to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rule. Having
consider their valuable knowledge and experiences in the
Group’s business, the Board considers the re-election of Mr.
Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul and Mr. Sze
Irons as independent Non-Executive Directors are in the best
interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

A.5. Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference as set out in the Code
Provisions A.5.2 (a) to (d) and are published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for formulating nomination policy,
and making recommendations to the Board on nomination
and appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The Committee will also review the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee is provided with
sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

A majority of the members of the Nomination Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. Victor Chan, who was appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1
January 2017. The other members are Mr. Chan Ping Kuen,
Derek and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

A.6. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of an issuer and its conduct, business activities and
development. Given the essential unitary nature of the board,
non-executive directors have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as executive directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under statue and common law, the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements and the
business governance policies of the Group. The Directors are
continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
business and strategic development of the Group to enable
the discharge of their responsibilities.
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The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 30 June 2017 is as follows:

HEL Ry
BERAEER
ERE R
HEAE
Reading
materials/
regulatory
updates?/
Attending
Directors seminar
Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor v
Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, Jp v
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley v
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki v
Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing 4
Non-executive Director
Mr. Yam Tat Wing
(Re-designated with effect from
1 January 2017) v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP 4
Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek v
Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP v
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank v
# Reading materials concerning latest developments in

corporate governance practices, relevant legal and regulatory
developments.

At each Director’s first appointment and subsequent
reappointment, the Director is required to disclose to
the Company the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as the time involved. The Directors are
also required to notify the Company whenever there are
changes to the offices and commitments already disclosed.
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The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are highly skilled professionals with
expertise and experience in the field of accounting, financial
management and business. All Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors take an active role in
Board meetings to bring in independent judgement to bear
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts.
They scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor the
reporting of performance. They also take the lead where
potential conflicts of interest arise and serve the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Company
has received written confirmation from all the Independent
Non-executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.

Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors should also attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr.
Sze Irons, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, did not attend the AGM held on 29 November
2016 due to other business engagement. Other Independent
Non-executive Directors were present at the AGM and were
available to answer questions.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transaction by Directors of
the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry with
all Directors and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 30 June 2017.
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A.7. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in the form and quality to enable
them to make an informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director shall have separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. \Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and
all directors” remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. Remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain directors to run the company successfully
without paying more than necessary. No director should be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.2 (a) to (h) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee, with delegated responsibility, is responsible
for annually reviewing the existing remuneration policy
including the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management whereas the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any. Terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2017 to discuss remuneration related matters
and to review and approve the remuneration policy of the
Directors and of the Group.

The emoluments of the senior management by band for the
year ended 30 June 2017 is set out below:

AE
Fr M 4H B Number of persons
Emolument bands 2017 2016
=% 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to independent professional
advice, to perform its duties if considered necessary.

C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance,
position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing consolidated
financial statements of each financial period, which shall give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2017, the Directors have made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 67 to
73 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017.

For the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
values over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
objectives, please refer to page 5 under Corporate Profile
and pages 7 to 24 under Chairman’s Statement.
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The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

C.2. Risk management and Internal control

The board should ensure that the issuer establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board requires management to establish
and maintain appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Evaluation of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering financial,
operational and compliance controls had been done on
an on going basis. Review of internal controls on different
systems will be done on a systematic rotational basis based
on the risk assessments of the operations and controls.
The Board has confirmed that there was no significant
weakness and area of improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

Code Provision C.2.5 provides that the issuer should have
an internal audit function. Issuers without an internal audit
function should review the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for the absence of such
a function. The Company does not have an internal audit
function for the year ended 30 June 2017. Taking into
account the size and complexity of the operations of the
Group, the Company considers that the existing organisation
structure and the close supervision of the management could
provide sufficient internal control and risk management
for the Group. The audit committee of the Board regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the internal control systems and
risk management of the Group. The Board would review the
need to set up an internal audit function on an annual basis.



Corporate Governance Report m X E 4R

C3. EREES

ESERAMAERMBERSLA
B B2 122 R Bl K2 A0 4] e 15 L 31T A X
BUEDE 2 B RIFL DR R A&
EH)Z - RIBE LR RIKIZAE
ZEEBGARRBWHBELE -

RRABIERNBEZEES WHE
EFIRBAE B EEE - JBMT 5B H &
BEBE - BERZES BiEaSE
B IE <P R 2 57 AE 30 C.3.3()E (n)
s o B WRER B 2 EE
B -HEEZZESRIRER
BEREEZEIEIBEESGE &5
FABSE A2 P A8 U e AN X &) A8k o

HIMEBELEH E2ERES

AEERVBKERSE RkEE
RAEEZERG  ARBEHFER
T UBBRENTHRECTHE
B RIET AR XCITAAME &
“ZBegkalEE A Y BIE
HAMEESREMT mA A
MAEETRROEIZ L&
“ZEEeeMRABELRH BX
NCIETl =R (NS o VA
ENREUEE RETE REEXR
NAESBZE A EER
& BEER_ENBER-

BENZEEHARR 2B IF
WMITESER BHRSELREEE
IR -BRZEGEVEFHEIE
P2 BN & /R -

C.3. Audit Committee

The board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements to consider how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s auditor. The audit
committee established under the Listing Rules should have
clear terms of reference.

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The revised terms of
reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority and its
duties and responsibilities are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for oversight of financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, and for
reviewing the financial information of annual report, financial
statements and interim report. As required by Code Provision
C.3.7, the Audit Committee would review arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Audit Committee would ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow up action and acting as
the key representation body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. The Audit Committee meet with
external auditor at least twice a year.
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been
addressed by management. The work and findings of the
Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During
the year, no issues brought to the attention of management
and the Board were of sufficient importance to require
disclosure in the Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s
recommendation for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Company'’s independent auditor.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, save as the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has paid approximately
HK$244,000 in relation to the non-audit services (including
other reporting services).

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all Audit
Committee members for their comments and records, within
a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditor.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditor, to perform its
duties.
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D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for board approval. The board should
give clear directions to management on the matters that
must be approved by it before decisions are made on issuer’s
behalf.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group's business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management, in
particular, where management shall report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of matters reserved
to the Board for decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

D.2. Board Committees
Board committees should be formed with specific written

terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.
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The Board has established an Audit Committee (particulars
are disclosed under C.3), a Remuneration Committee
(particulars are disclosed under B.1) and a Nomination
Committee (particulars are disclosed under A.5). Where
Board Committees are established to deal with matters, the
Board shall give them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions properly. The
terms of reference of Board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

D.3. Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc. During the year ended 30 June 2017, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation.

At the 2016 AGM, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-elections of Directors. The attendance records at Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and 2016 AGM are
disclosed on page 33.
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The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels
of communication with its shareholders. It has been the
practice, the Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of
the Board Committees, together with the external auditor,
shall attend the AGM to answer questions of shareholders.
Apart from the direct interaction with the shareholders at the
AGM, the Company has established different communication
channels with its shareholders. We maintain a corporate
website www.continental.com.hk to publish our final and
interim results announcements, financial reports, public
announcements and other relevant shareholder information.
The announcements and the Articles of Association of
the Company are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Pursuant to Code Provision
E.1.3, the Company arranges for the notice for AGM to be
sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should ensure that shareholders are familiar with
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting
will be taken by poll, except the Chairman decides to
allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands,
pursuant to the requirement under Rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman of the AGM will explain the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the AGM.

After the conclusion of the AGM, the poll results will be
published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and at the website www.continental.com.hk
on the business day following the AGM.
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F. Company Secretary

The company secretary plays an important roles in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
The company secretary is responsible for advising the
board through the chairman and/or the chief executive on
governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and his
appointment and removal is subject to Board approval. The
Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Director’'s duties, such as by giving advice on
corporate governance development and facilitating the
professional development program of Directors. All Directors
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations, are followed. During the fiscal
year 2017, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights may call for an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward agenda items by sending a
written request to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office. Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
who have a right to vote or at least 50 members who have a
right to vote on the resolution of the annual general meeting
to which the requests relate, may put forward proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company
by sending a written request to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office. Procedures on how
shareholders can propose a person for election as a Director
are available at the Company’s website for shareholders’
information.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by post to the registered office of
the Company. Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns, where
appropriate, will be forwarded to and answered by the Board
or relevant Board Committees.

Investor Relations

There were no significant changes in the Company’s Articles
of Association during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transaction by Directors of the Company.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 30 June 2017.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the year ended 30
June 2017 and the financial position of the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 74 to 247.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 24 of
this Annual Report.
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FTERREBEAREEY PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
BERIBRERITHRER 1. Economic climate and individual market performance
HRAKRERBAREEZHE As jewellery and diamonds are luxury consumer
oo ERIRE R KBEIRIEY products, the impact of global financial and economic
HEEGEORBE hZZE conditions on consumer confidence and purchasing
AT EARAEE 2 HERR power would affect sales and results of the Group.
N 2EE - REEM RIS EE The economic growth or decline in our geographical
BRIMELHEEKREH markets that affected consumer spending on jewellery
By BN ELREE would also affect our revenue of the Group. In
Z WS o BN - BB IRIR Al B addition, economic environment would affect the
HERBITEZEEMAE production cost of jewellery business such as rent,
WMiE  FIWA BRKE labour cost, packaging and transportation cost etc.
BIPAR T o
MERHE KEREEETE In property side, economic climate directly affects
MEEE REEHAEERY the value of properties and investors’ interest in
¥HEBzHEHBLHESWA - our property projects and rental income. Rising
BREERAN ~ BB TR RATRHE construction costs, labour costs and material prices
BEAYETETKYEER will affect the budget and the timing for completion
BrzEE KERExK- of the property projects.
FEBZRBEXEBFTERK The Group’s mining business requires substantial
W& - BRVBENTERM investment and may not achieve expected financial
FRE-BABRKE R E results. The fluctuation in price of mineral ores may
RERIR MBS 2 RE affect prospects of the investments and impairment
AR ERBEEEZ(ME- of the mining business may affect the valuation of
M WBERREREBES mining assets. The risk of loss of asset value such as
BEEBEEXRERIENE3 impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is
BZFRMEAN- set out in the Chairman’s Statement on page 13.
™5 Rk 2. Market risk

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
details are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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FTEMBFERIEE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FEUBEREEONET The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
below:
2017 2016 +/(-)
FEx FET 23
HK$000 HK$000 Change
%S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Wz Revenue 627,293 552,575 13.5%
EME(%) Gross profit margin (%) 17.8% 15.7% 2. 1ppE D&
HBRHNERFEHAAF  EBIT
(TEBITJ) 114,788 (170,038) 167.5%
EBITEL 3 (%) EBIT margin (%) 18.3% -308% 49.1ppE D2
RATHEEAEL Profit/(Loss) attributable to the
wmAlL (EE) owners of the Company 98,306 (175,666) 156.0%
mwR, CFE1E) E(%) Net profit/(loss) margin (%) 15.7% -31.8% 47.5ppA N E
1BE E 13 (%) Return on total assets (%) 5.0% -5.8% 10.8ppE D2
ITEMHER KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
RekBRe% R Cash and cash equivalents 374,648 45,632 721.0%
MEEERE Net current assets 423,547 176,438 140.1%
BEER Total assets 2,314,865 2,954,644 21.7%
BiEER Total liabilities 470,400 1,230,703 -61.8%
BITER Bank loans 119,000 571,548 -79.2%
ANREEA AFEIGHEZE  Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 1,850,863 1,730,097 7.0%
Behx Cash ratio 1.61 0.06 2,583.3%
BN (%) Current ratio (times) 2.82 1.23 129.3%
BEABHE Gearing ratio 0.00 0.32 -100.0%
P B A 2 81 S (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 5.3% -102% 15.5ppB 7 2
FREARF,/ Basic earning/(loss) per share
(BHE) (B (HK cent) 1.44 (2.57) 156.0%
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group promotes environmental protection by
raising the employees’ awareness of resources saving
and efficient use of energy. In recent years, the
Group has implemented several policies to encourage
employees for saving energy and paper. All these
policies aim at reducing resources and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the
commercial goals of the Group.

Operating Practices

The Group upholds high standards of operating
practices and complies with stringent jewellery
manufacturing standards. One of the subsidiaries
of the Company is a certified member of the
Responsible Jewellery Council (“RJC”). RIC is a not-
for-profit organization which promotes responsible
ethical, social and environmental practices, respect
human rights throughout the Diamond, Gold and
Platinum Group Metals jewellery supply chain. As
a certified member of the RIC, the subsidiary had
undergone independent, third party auditing to
show our business practices at all facilities within
the certification scope conform to RJC's Code of
Practices for business ethics, labour rights and working
conditions, social and environmental performance.
The Group has stringent requirements to maintain
high levels of quality control and responsible business
practices.

For further information about the environment
policies and performance of the Company during
the year, please refer to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules to be issued within
three months after the publication of this annual
report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
provides competitive remuneration packages to attract and
retain employees. The management regularly reviews the
Group's remuneration of its employees and ensures that it is
up to prevailing market standard.

The Group values mutually-beneficial and long-standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality products to its customers and
developing mutual trust with its suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2017, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution amounted to HK$945,279,000 (2016:
HK$208,943,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
248.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$120,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 41.0% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 9.5%. The largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 36.4% and 65.5%, respectively, of
the Group's total purchases for the year.

As far as the Directors of the Company are aware, neither
the Directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor (Chairman)
(Appointed as Chairman with effect from 1 January 2017)

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley (Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki

Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Yam Tat Wing
(Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, JP

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
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In accordance with Articles 109, 115(A) and 115(D) of the
Articles of Association, Mr. Yam Tat Wing, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin,
Paul and Mr. Sze Irons shall retire from office by rotation
and all of them are eligible for re-election at the AGM.
Furthermore, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval to continue to be the Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in accordance with
Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
because his term of office with the Company has been over
nine years.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules concerning his
independence. The Board considers each of the four
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are available on the website of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to
31 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.



Directors’ Report m EE 2%}

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—tFRA=ZTHLFE

e HERT R TR RS

ARBERHEZLRSREEAR
AREES ARG MELE 2 AR
Fr REFNEREEABZEE
R E 2 IR LHE - ERES M
BERFRERSURE R RS (&
BEPIEARAE -+t -E)FMAt+
Rz RERESHRHEZESTERE
RBABUEIIE =B L+ — ())&
YL ERS IEFE AR

BiREE

AR 2 BRI BIERIINE
208 EH23E KA B BHREH &
=+t-

R LR E13.51BIRIEH Z
M=

1. BZE—tF—A—RHiE

(i) MRELERERARAE
FERRREEEERE
B MEEARRIH
TES:

(i) ARBHTEERE
VEAEBZERER
RIBLRZEGERF M

(i) fEELILEBRARNT
MITESHATAEIEHR
TES-

2. UTHEEZFHSEXNZE
W% BT RBETIBKE
s

BE-ZE—+F—A—HE &
Sk HiEL RMrTIhEER
BEEZRAHFEDFHERT A
200,000 7T ~ 200,000/ 7T »
90,0007% 7T 52.118,0007% It °
FTEXREEBZEEEHE
50,0005 7T, ©

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for directors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) when the Directors’
Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out on pages 20 to 23 and in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

1. With effect from 1 January 2017,

(i) Dr. Chan stepped down as the Chairman and
chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
but remained as executive director of the
Company;

(i) Mr. Victor Chan, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as the Chairman and
chairman of the Nomination Committee; and

(i)  Mr. Yam Tat Wing was re-designated from
executive director to non-executive director of
the Company.

2. The remuneration package of the following directors
have been revised after taking consideration of their
responsibilities and the prevailing market rates:

With effect from 1 January 2017, the monthly
remuneration of Mr. Victor Chan, Dr. Chan, Ms. Vicki
Chan and Mr. Wong Edward Gwon-hing has been
revised to HK$200,000, HK$200,000, HK$90,000 and
HK$118,000 respectively. Mr. Yam Tat Wing will be
entitled to a director’s fee of HK$50,000 per annum.
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3. Mr. Sze Irons, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was also appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 25) with
effect from 25 November 2016 and appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Bel Global Resources
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 761) with effect from 1
February 2017.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report and
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company’s holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the financial year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the interests
of directors of the Company in businesses which might
compete with the Group during the year ended 30 June
2017 and as at 30 June 2017 were as follows:

Dr. Chan, a Director of the Company, has held interest and
directorship in companies engaged in the same businesses
of gold mining activities in Sichuan Province of the PRC and
Indonesia. Although some of the businesses carried out by
these companies are similar to those of the Group, they are
of different scale and at different locations. Therefore, the
Board is of the view that the businesses of those companies
did not compete with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
set out below:

AR

2#1T

ARRZEBRYE BRAEES

Number of ordinary shares of the Company Percentage of

BA#E AGE 5 THEEE the Company's

Personal Corporate Underlying iy issued share

EEpE Name of Directors interest interest interest Total capital
REE ([BRE£])  Chan Wai Lap, Victor 2,700,000 - 30,000,000 32,700,000 0.48%

(“Mr. Victor Chan")

BRESE ([®REL])  ChanSing Chuk, Charles
("Dr. Chan")

BN ([8%E])  Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

("Ms. Cheng")
bR Chan Ping Kuen, Derek
BREH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
FER Yam Tat Wing
HEERE Wong Edward Gwon-hing

el 2SS RsmREL Btk
R E¥HR 2 AR Tamar

Investments Group Limited#% 4 ©

a2 - RS RaRERER ZBREY
Rz N BRI s o

(FI5£2) (Note 2)

- 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
(FF7E1) (Note 1)
- 5,063,395,220 - 5,063,395,220 74.12%
(Bi93E1) (Note 1)
200,000 - - 200,000 0.003%
- - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%
(B45E2) (Note 2)
2,400,000 - 20,000,000 22,400,000 0.33%
(FF5¥2) (Note 2)
- - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.44%

(B$5E2) (Note 2)

Note 1: Such interests are held by Tamar Investments Group Limited,
which is a company wholly-owned by Dr. Chan, Ms. Cheng and
Mr. Victor Chan.

Note 2: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares
of the Company in respect of share options granted to the

Directors.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no time during the year were the rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2017, no person, other than Mr. Chan Wai
Lap, Victor, Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng, whose interests are set
out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, had
registered an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group, continued to exist as at 30 June
2017. The financial assistance, in aggregate, represent
approximately 48.4% under the assets ratio as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

The amounts of the financial assistance as at 30 June 2017
were set out below:

rEEREZ BEN-E MBEY
b E L E N NGIE k)
Attributable  Shareholder’s Aggregate
interest held loan or Corporate financial
by the Group advances guarantee assistance
BT BT BT

HKS HKS HKS

Wealth Plus Developments Limited
([Wealth Plus | ) R ELF B 2 ]
Wealth Plus Developments Limited

(“Wealth Plus”) and its subsidiary
P EE

1. BTRRERIBRIERERL
R B LEmERE R
BEER MABEZBRRERK
B AR B E T E R

2. RARIGEFEMNET —HKE
AElZ EHERE —BRITIRE
AR #386,650,0007T (855 4
445,266,000/ 7T ) Z R - AR
773,300,0007C /& B E A 2 &R H3
BZZ—X~"Ft+—A+HBZHEKX
RN H R A =F-

50% 676,140,000 445,266,000  1,121,406,000

(BEED) (FEE2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Notes:
1. The shareholder’s loan or advances had been granted as

working capital for the development of the construction
site located in Yangpu District, of Shanghai in the PRC. The
outstanding shareholder’s loan or advances is interest free,
unsecured and has no fixed repayment term.

2. A guarantee to the extent of RMB386,650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$445,266,000) was given by the Company in
favour of a bank in respect of the term loan facilities granted to
a subsidiary of Wealth Plus. The guarantee period last for three
years from the date of first drawdown on 16 November 2016 in
relation to the term loan facilities of RMB773,300,000.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES (continued)

In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial position
of the joint venture and the Group’s attributable interests in
these affiliated companies based on their latest consolidated
financial statements available are presented below:

a AER

BA# R & MElEZ =

Combined Group's

statement of attributable

financial position interest

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

EMBEE Non-current assets 2,689,860 1,344,930
MBEE Current assets 80,050 40,025
mENEE Current liabilities (901,878) (450,939)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (1,510,666) (755,333)
BEFE Net assets 357,366 178,683

BRE—THBHINNG A BB R
EHET -

MEALRS
BB AR5 (ERBEEA TR

5) 2 BIERIINEG & 0 B R EH
S =o

Further details are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in notes
43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 17 July 2017, the Group had entered into a preliminary
agreement for sale and purchase (the "Agreement”)
with an independent third party relating to acquisition of
100% equity interest of Ontrack Ventures Limited and its
subsidiary, which principal asset was a piece of land at No.
232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong, at total consideration
of HK$1,180,000,000, subject to certain adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement. Completion
shall take place on 25 October 2017. The details of the
acquisition were set out in the announcement and circular of
the Company dated 18 July 2017 and 25 September 2017
respectively.

Details of the significant events after the reporting date is set
out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalf of the Directors

Chan Wai Lap, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2017
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www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
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To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 247, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of mining right and related non-financial
assets

(Refer to notes 3.7, 3.8, 3.11, 4, 14, and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 30 Jun 2017, the Group had mining right and non-financial
assets amounting to approximately HK$646.7 million and HK$37.7
million respectively relating to one of the cash-generating units
within the mining operation segment (the “Mining CGU II”).
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Management has performed an annual impairment test in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded
that there is no impairment in respect of the mining right and non-
financial assets for the year ended 30 June 2017. Management
appointed an independent valuation firm to estimate the
recoverable amount of the mining right and non-financial assets
attributable to the Mining CGU Il using market approach with
reference to recent comparable transactions undertaken in the
mining industry.

We identified the impairment of mining right and non-financial
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and because the selection of
recent comparable transactions involve significant judgement and
estimates with respect to the underlying market approach.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment
assessment of mining right and non-financial assets attributable to
the Mining CGU I included:

- evaluating the independent valuation firm’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the valuation methodology used by management
and the independent valuation firm;

- reviewing and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and critical judgement areas which underpin
the fair value estimation;

- engaging an auditor’s expert to assist us to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and the
reasonableness of the inputs, assumptions and estimations
used by management and the independent valuation firm
which underpin the fair value estimation; and

- checking the accuracy and the relevance of the input data
used.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.



Annual Report 2017 “F

Independent Auditor’'s Report m B3 ZEENRE

REETHE T RS MM RAENEE
(%)

FREMERIN RAEESZZESER

TrrEIMEFRE  BRZHERERSE
AERE BREMERSTTRENEA
HB 122 ) B () B ARG ©

HPEMEZZESRIBH  FHAR
MEMEEBBE LM EREREREE
Ko X B FUB B Al e A B R A
SEERME LB BEMEME
E-UREBERNERIT HENHE
=ik

HREEEBFED  HAIEE WL
ERH ARG EMBRERNETRRE
2 AmEKERETEE - HLAEZ
HEMmEP MG L EIR  BRIFEAER
ERPAHALRAKBEELEIR AR
mERMERT ARG EFEERM
HEPBBRFREKNEEEREB
EENRRNE  RIVRETEERS
RERZER-

EHIEESTE
HEDT AT
KREE

N EFEZ R 5 P05440

FHEDEHIRARLA

FE —E—tFhLA-t+XAH

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 26 September 2017
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2017 2016
k=3 F#T FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
W & Revenue 6 627,293 552,575
BHE R A Cost of sales (515,776) (465,581)
EAM Gross profit 111,517 86,994
HE Ko KA Selling and distribution costs (21,874) (22,855)
1THE A Administrative expenses (100,526) (103,583)
E g A Other operating income 7,767 7,112
REMHERNTFEZE Change in fair value of
investment property 16 700 11,112
AMHEHEZSMEEREEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets 20 (8,373) (457)
KB R EE R Impairment loss on mining right 17 = (36,417)
Y% BB R RERAEEIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 14 (23,374) (944)
B S EIR B BB Income arising from amortising
FrEE & 2 WA the financial guarantee liabilities 5,789 3,167
VARE 15 75 20 2 R M Share-based compensation 37 (2,140) (2,390)
HE—ENE AR 2 Kas Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 45 22,291 =
Y ®N Finance costs 7 (12,239) (16,017)
e EhFEES Share of results of joint ventures 123,011 (111,777)
BRErEHERM, (BE) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 8 102,549 (186,055)
FrisH (AX) % Income tax (expense)/credit 9 (4,098) 10,363

FENEFR, (BE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 98,451 (175,692)
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2017 2016
k=3 F#ET FHET
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
HitEmE > IR BIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax
FTEEHFHEEEFEZEB:  Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
EHAELHRIEF 2 A Surplus on revaluation of leasehold
land and building 14 36,385 =
HEWEMFBEZEEEZ Items that may be subsequently
EHE: reclassified to profit or loss:
AMEHEZSMEEATFE  Change in fair value of available-for-
2B sale financial assets 645 1,341
A& 2 S RLE ERER Redlassification from equity to
HiERENMHHEER profit or loss on impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets 620 457
HMEGINETS B AT & Exchange differences on translation
EEPHEIELEZR of foreign operations, associates
and joint ventures (17,117) (110,258)
FRNHEMEEE fIFBRFBE  Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax 20,533 (108,460)
FRNEHEHEEHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 118,984 (284,152)
FEILE IR (BE) : Profit/(Loss) for the year
attributable to:
VIN/NETEZ =N Owners of the Company 98,306 (175,666)
FEIZE HilHE 2 Non-controlling interests 145 (26)
98,451 (175,692)
EiEENEEY SRR Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
ZN/NEIEZ Z =N Owners of the Company 118,839 (284,126)
FEI2 il HE Non-controlling interests 145 (26)
118,984 (284,152)
AR BHE ANEM Earnings/(Loss) per share for
BRSO (BR)Z profit/(loss) attributable to A JEN
SREFN (&E) the owners of the Company 11 HK cent HK cent
R Basic 1.44 (2.57)
33 Diluted 1.44 (2.57)
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2017 2016
it Fi#ET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREEE Non-current assets
M- WE R &E Property, plant and equipment 14 64,999 94,431
- Hbfsh A A Land use rights 15 32,908 34,687
EYE Investment property 16 37,800 472,930
g Mining right 17 646,739 656,334
i RN - X Interests in associates 18 = -
NN o L Interests in joint ventures 19 854,828 708,636
AHEEZEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 15,285 22,393
& B R R IE Long-term receivables 21 = =
B IBE E Deferred tax assets 34 5,762 5,762
1,658,321 1,995,173
MENEE Current assets
BREPYE Property under development 22 - 576,843
FE Inventories 23 169,937 221,799
g 5 el FRE Trade receivables 24 96,085 93,231
AR - ZE & Prepayments, deposits and
H fth pE W FRIR other receivables 10,088 17,478
AFEFABZRZZ Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 25 5,770 4,222
TESmITE Derivative financial instruments 31 = 99
e G & IR Due from joint ventures 19 16 167
BehkB&ER Cash and cash equivalents 26 374,648 45,632
656,544 959,471
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 ENFR0E Trade payables 27 (58,703) (126,705)
H iR RIB R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (40,067) (75,948)
RITENK Bank loans 28 (119,000) (571,548)
R & EAE Obligation under finance leases 29 (377) (379)
FETRE R R FIE Due to related companies 30 (576) (2,744
TESHITE Derivative financial instruments 31 (143) -
S EREE Financial guarantee liabilities 32 (7,216) (3,411)
AR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 33 (4,606) =
T IE 2 s Provision for tax (2,309) (2,298)
(232,997) (783,033)
mEBEEFE Net current assets 423,547 176,438
BWEERTBERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,081,868 2,171,611
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2017 2016
k23 Fi#&T FHETT
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
& T B AIE Obligation under finance leases 29 (314) (691)
FEAS A& A Rl 5RI8 Due to related companies 30 (82,036) (165,346)
HSEREE Financial guarantee liabilities 32 (9,921) (2,245)
AR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 33 = (131,670)
FEHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 34 (145,132) (147,718)
(237,403) (447,670)
BEEFE Net assets 1,844,465 1,723,941
= EQUITY
[N Share capital 35 560,673 560,673
G Reserves 36 1,290,190 1,169,424
KRB HER ANELHE = Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 1,850,863 1,730,097
Ik HE I HE = Non-controlling interests (6,398) (6,156)
R Total equity 1,844,465 1,723,941
REREZS On behalf of the Directors
R {2 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
o Director
R EE = Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
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2017 2016
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$°000
RELEBHERE Cash flows from operating activities
BTSSR, (EiE) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 102,549 (186,055)
B THIERFAE: Adjustments for:
R E KA Finance costs 12,239 16,017
JEHEEEXESE Share of results of joint ventures (123,011) 111,777
VARG 1 7 18 2 SR B Share-based compensation 2,140 2,390
VI R E R ERETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 5,668 7,722
+ 3 {58 A AR B Amortisation of land use rights 1,349 1,366
BB e 1 B Amortisation of mining right 656 705
FEEE Provision for inventories 6,593 5,955
Z W IB R Provision/(Reversal of provision)
(FEfEE () for trade receivables 220 (543)
AHEE 2 SMEERERIE  Impairment loss on available-for-
sale financial assets 8,373 457
& — I B A 7z e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (22,291) =
HEWE BENMEZMBEZER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 4 6
RIES —EEEAQRFKIE  Gain on debt extinguishment
ﬁﬁ? H 2 EREE K arising from recognition of
amount due to a related
company - (2,222)
SH Y - B K A Write-off of property,
plant and equipment 4,859 163
BRI E SR Impairment loss on mining right - 36,417
VI HE R EREREREIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 23,374 944
e — & & EFKRIE Impairment loss on amount
VEREY T due from a joint venture = 150
MEETENFIE e Rk Wirite-off of prepayments,
b FE W RIA deposits and other receivables - 468
ISR E G Income arising from amortising
FTE£ 2 WA the financial guarantee liabilities (5,789) (3,167)
RILERGBERAE Income arising from derecognition
FTEA 2 WA of financial guarantee liabilities (4,377) -
BEMENFEZES Change in fair value of
investment property (700) (11,112)
mEESMIEZAYE Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative
B8, (Ukas) financial instruments 149 (202)
REIRE N R Unrealised foreign exchange loss 1,350 10,363
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2017 2016
k23 F#ETT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
"‘*Eﬁﬁ:ﬁ@]ﬁ'ﬁz Operating profit/(loss) before
s giEd (5B8) working capital changes 13,355 (8,401)
&R, (3 ) Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 44,788 (13,716)
%f%ﬁ‘%%%’(lﬁ (), W (Increase)/Decrease in trade
receivables (3,293) 21,333
TERFIR - e REAM Decrease in prepayments, deposits
FEWMIEHQ and other receivables 7,052 21,719
NFEFAEZZEREE (ncrease)/Decrease in financial assets
( #h0), R at fair value through profit or loss (1,548) 1,804
BRAMERLD (M) Decrease/(Increase) to property under
development 89,811 (26,810)
Uk & & EFKTE Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due
A (1) from joint ventures 151 (162)
B 5 Ik H A fE T RIE Decrease in trade and other payables
FEST & AR A and accruals (100,751) (4,874)
FERT B3 A R FIE R A Decrease in amounts due to related
companies - 117)
PESRMTAES Changes in derivative financial
instruments 93 87
BeEEL (FFR)ZHRE Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 49,658 (9,137)
B F & Interest paid (9,580) (15,927)
BB ZEEH PRC enterprise income tax paid (138) (121)
B EEREN Hong Kong profits tax paid (3) (848)
BEEBREL (A Z Net cash generated from/
HE/FHE (used in) operating activities 39,937 (26,033)
BREFHRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
NEWE - KRB N Additions to property, plant and
equipment (6,449) (6,897)
REDHERIREMFE 2 Additions to property under
BRI development classified as
investment property (4,106) (13,939)
HE—ERBARZ Net cash inflows from
WEIMA R disposal of a subsidiary 45 981,747 =
HEWE HEREZEHE2 Proceeds from disposal of property,
FriS 538 plant and equipment 25 2
BT — G 4 Increase in loans to a joint venture
=&/l (11,500) (134,440)
REFBESL (FFH)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)
HEFH investing activities 959,717 (155,274)
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2017 2016
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEFBRERE Cash flow from financing
activities
BRI R 2K Repayment to a controlling
shareholder (127,000) (21,000)
(BE—reEQR),/ (Repayment to)/Advance from
—RIBE R BB a related company (90,000) 90,000
EEREHE&AE Repayment of obligation under
finance leases (421) (421)
WiE—FEf B AR Acquisition of non-controlling
PRSI interests of a subsidiary (600) =
FIBIRITERK New bank loans 10,000 164,200
BBIFITER Repayment of bank loans (462,548) (61,179)
LT (TH) E£Z Net cash (used in)/generated
HEFH from financing activities (670,569) 171,600
HERREER Net increase/(decrease) in cash
@i GR )38 and cash equivalents 329,085 (9,707)
FENZRERREEH Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 45,632 55,641
SINEEESEHZRE FH Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (69) (302)
ERZBRERBEER Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year 374,648 45,632
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LINGE 2PN LT 5
Equtty attrioutable to the owners of the Company
BhE  TUAK EfiR®  RAER Ea
e 1 R EtRE AR L BE  REEA &5t 4
Share Non- Capital Exchange  Investment Non-
Share option ~ distributable Other  contrbution  fluctuation  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

AT TET TET TET TET TET TAL TET TAL AT TET
HKSO00 HKSOOD  HKSODO HKSOOO HKSOOD  HKSOOD  AKSOMD AKSOO HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOWD

RZF-RELA-AZER  Balanceat 1)uly 2015 560,673 1879 273,606 (5397) 20935 88,872 4785 1,058848 2,004,201 6,130 1998071
—FBERRERLEEZ  Deemed capital contrbution arising from
BERAEEEHBAESZ  debtextinguishment from

BiEtE (HE=10) a related company uftmately held by
a controlling sharefolder (note 30(b)) - - - - 763 - - = 7632 = 1632
BRI AR 2 M Recogition of share-based compensation
(Hi=t+) (note 37) = 2390 = = = = = = 2390 - 2390
AREAZRS Transactions with owners - 239 - - 7632 - - - 10022 - 1002
ENER Loss for the year - - - - - - - (175,666)  (175,666) 26 (17569
Eh2ERE: Other comprehensive income:
AEHEZSREEATEZ  Change n fair value of avallable-orsdle
2958 financ assets, net - - - - - - 1341 - 1341 - 1341
RAEHEZ SHEERER  Redassfication from equity to
BERENAREER profit or loss on impairment on
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - 457 = 457 = 457
BEENER BERAIR  Bxchange differences on translation of
RERFZERZR foreign operations, assodiates and
Joint ventures - - - - - (110,258) - - (110,258) - (110,258)
ENEENELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (110.258) 1,798 (175,666) (284,126) (26) (284,152)
RZE-NENBZTHZES Balance at 30 June 2016 560,673 4,269% 273 606* (5,397 28567* (21,386)* 6,583* 883,182% 1,730,097 (6,156) 1723941




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity m fR SRS E &K

For the year ended 30 June 2017

BE_Z—tFAA=THILFE
LIGE N {15
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
EhE  FURR Exs  BEER  HEEH s
it i BE  AbRE  IEEE 1] L] L Bi#l &t s EnAE
Share Non- Capital ~ Exchange Assets  Investment Non-
Share option ~ distributable Other contribution  fluctuation  revaluation  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
i FET ki 73 71 FET k73 i FET &L b7 i FET
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RIF-nEtA-RZER Balance at 1 July 2016 560,673 4269 273,606 (5397) 28567 (21,386) - 6,583 883,182 1,730,097 (6156) 1723941
2] Recognition of share-based compensation (note 37)

(B - 2,140 - - - - - - - 2140 - 2140
WE-EHELT 7*1 150EE  Acguistin of non-controling nteest in a subsidary - - - (213) - - - - - (1) (387) (600)
SREALLS Transactions with owners - 2140 - (13) - - - - - 1927 (387) 1500
ERiEH Profit for the year - - - - - - - = 98,306 98,306 145 98451
Lh2ENE: Other comprehensive income:

e SRERATEY Change in air value of avalable-orsele

2958 finandal asets, net - - - - - - - 5 - 65 - 5
Rt e SRARNER Redassficaion from equtyto

HERENARZER profitor los on impairment on

avalable-orsale finandial assets - - - - - - - 620 - 620 - 620
EREETHRETI AR Surplus on evaluation ofleasehold land and
() building (note 14) - - - - - - 36,385 - - 36,385 = 36,385
BEENER BELAR Exchange differences on renslation of
AELEIEREE oregn operation, assocates and
oint ventures - - - - - (17,117) - - - (17117 - (17,117)
ERSENELE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (17.417) 36,385 1,265 98,306 118,839 145 118,984
RIF-tERAZTRZER Balance at 30 June 2017 560,673 6,409 273,606* (5,610 28567 (38,503)* 36,385 7,848 981488 1,850,863 (6398) 1844465
* Z %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ ﬂ?\é,ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁqﬂ * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
ri-

—/\¢ ©1,169,424,000/8 7T ) °

A f##1,290,190,0008 T (= ZF

HK$1,290,190,000 (2016: HK$1,169,424,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong. The address of the Company’s registered office and
principal place of business is Flats M & N, 1st Floor, Kaiser
Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds

- Property investment

- Mining operation

— Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited
(“Tamar Investments”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to
247 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (""HKFRSs”) which collective
terms include all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA") and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective
1 July 2016

The Group has adopted the following new or revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant
to its operations and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2016.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation
HKAS 38 and Amortisation
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations

The adoption of these new or revised HKFRSs has
no material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group's financial statements, that

have been issued, but are not yet effective in the

financial year of which the consolidated financial

statements were prepared, have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to

HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Transfers of Investment
Property?

Annual Improvements to
2014-2016 Cycle*

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-Based Payment
Transactions?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)?

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Leases®

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration?

Uncertainty Over Income Tax
Treatments®
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure

that will enable users of financial statements to

evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash
settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
that changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture or
associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if the objective
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
and equity instruments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at fair
value through profit or loss replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for
financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of
the framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”,
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related
interpretations.
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- RN EBAMGERE AL 2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(%)
(b) CEMERRERZI (b)  New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
BIERT BB ISR E % but are not yet effective (continued)
Al (&)
BB S ERIE 15 HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
H—ELE M (E) (continued)
BB mEERZE15 HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
SR SR AL B B R U approach to revenue recognition:
5
o FE—H: HAERPZ o Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a
Gro) customer
o F=H: HAEHFZ . Step 2:  Identify the performance
BREE obligations in the contract
o F=H: EEXRHER . Step 3:  Determine the transaction price
o FNF: BARHBHE . Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to
EREORME each performance obligation
o FHH: RERHEF 0 Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each
SERX I FERR performance obligation is
Yoz satisfied
BB SRS ERE15 HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
TR EESE S IEE S revenue related topics that may change the current
B2 RFEIES| % FiE83 approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
S EERB BT EHRELE also significantly enhances the qualitative and
BRI E A 2 50k o % 28 quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
)b g gy izl
ZELHESHE-
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “lLeases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on
a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under
the predecessor standard, HKAS 17. In respect of
the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Save as the main changes described above, the
Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs
and the directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for
investment property and certain financial assets
and liabilities, which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’'s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up
to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.



Annual Report 2017 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+FRA=THILLFE

- EEER

(&)

3.2

el

BUR# =

EBEHRGEEE
(%)

W B R R R EBRA
Wi R ARR » BB B AN 3%
FABEEE FMELRARE
RASE (ERWET)
BITZBREREE A2
RNEBETE - T
Z AR EERFERER
BRIEERKBEER 2R
FEFE - AEESLAAT
R8Ty 2 B s
Bz A FEEHTE
mATEE & 2 W Sk e 1R R
R as AFER - AN B 7]
BERXHEERERR
FlESREERIEET R
BRI EEFE PG E
HERH BT B RAMA
ERem 2 IR - P
BEMIFE RS A
FEFE BRIFFBYE
WELEAZR S —EAE
% AlERam - FREE
2 W 7 8 A B AR 51 1B B
SO RRIFEHAEHTEST
HRFEL EXBERAT
BB S IR -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

33

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies. In consolidated
financial statements, associates are accounted for
using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor's share in the associate’s
profits or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount of
the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.
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The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers
joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the Group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same
principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement;
or

- Joint operations: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Joint arrangements (continued)

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

- The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances (including
any other contractual arrangements).

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amounts are
adjusted for the Group’s share of post-acquisition
changes in the joint ventures’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
joint venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses. Profits or
losses arising on the transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint
venture. The investors’ share in the joint venture’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the joint
venture. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred they are
recognised immediately to profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Joint arrangements (continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint
ventures are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group's presentation currency, have been converted
into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange fluctuation reserve in equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost, which
comprise purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (note
3.11). Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other than mining structures, depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Factory buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter
Commercial buildings Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the term of
the leases or estimated
useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17% — 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Depreciation on mining structures is provided to
write off the cost of the mining structure using units-
of-production method based on the total proven and
probable mineral reserves of the ore mines.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values
and useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
on retirement or disposal of an asset of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised on the units-of-production method based
on the total proven and probable reserves of the ore
mines.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the reporting date and its fair value cannot
be reliably determined at that time. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10

3.1

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments made
to acquire land held under an operating lease. They
are stated at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
determination if an arrangement is or contains a
lease and the lease is an operating lease is detailed
in note 3.17. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease/right
of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
mining right, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are subject to impairment testing.
They are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Any impairment loss is charged
pro-rata to the assets in the CGU, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

O
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The Group's accounting policies for financial assets
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- Loans and receivables

- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. A regular way purchase is a purchase
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the

rights to receive cash flows from the investments

expire or are transferred and substantially all of

the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed

to assess whether there is objective evidence of

impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment

loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial assets.

()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments
or financial guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(@

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
Joss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or
it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

- the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which are managed
and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management
strategy and information about the
group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(ir)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payment that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated to this category or do
not qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising
from a change in the fair value excluding any
dividend and interest income is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses
at each reporting date subsequent to initial
recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

3 significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

3 it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

3 a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

~l
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(@

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss as impairment
loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset's acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-
sale are not recognised in profit or loss.
The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses in respect of debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.

Xe)
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that
is carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on the estimated selling prices in the ordinary
course of business less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

The cost of property under development comprises
the acquisition cost of land, construction costs,
professional fees, other direct expenses and
capitalised borrowing costs (see note 3.23).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

3.15

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due
to related companies, financial guarantee liabilities,
loan from a controlling shareholder, obligation under
financial leases, bank loans and derivative financial
instruments.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3.23).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15

Financial liabilities (continued)

(@

(ir)

(iir)

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance lease payables

Finance lease payables are measured at
initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments.

Other financial liabilities other than derivative
financial instruments

They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly
to profit or loss for the year.

Lease

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+tFA=THIFE

D

BEE

(&)

ERTECRIE

317 FHE (&

RHBEHENEZEE

HAREARERE WS
BEZERAE ASEE
RAAEEEAFEZE
B (MRE)ERAEE
ZRIEBRENRZHRET
ABIEEE M (FAER &
BEMRR)EEAER
REEEEARE-

EREMEREREZE
EzREEEREERE
LW IBEEMEMER
—H-MHEMEHERE
RIREEN R E &
==

MEMNKAE ZBEEM
REEH B BEMER - 2
FEEeHECREER
EAEERRZ LR AHR
Rl RAEEREELZ
ERERIER Sl

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

Lease (continued)

Assets acquired under finance lease

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance lease, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
is included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments
less finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Lease (continued)

Assets leased under operating leases as the lessees

The total rental payable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payment made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The up-front payments are amortised over the lease
period on a straight-line basis and the amortisation
is charges to profit or loss. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

ul
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Share capital

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap.622, shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Considerations received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014 is
credited to share capital. Commissions and expenses
are allowed to be deducted from share capital under
S.148 and S.149 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable for the sale of

goods, net of rebates and discounts. Provided that

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as

follows:

0]

(ii)

sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold. This is usually taken at the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

sale of property is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the property have been transferred to the
purchasers and the Group retains neither
continuing involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over property under development.
The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of
possession of properties to the purchaser
when properties’ hand-over confirmation is
executed by the Group and the purchaser.
Deposits and disbursements received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under deposits received;

~l
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({:5) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.20 WEHHER(£E) 3.20 Revenue recognition (continued)
(il) FBUA - =B E (i) interest income, on a time-proportion basis
15 E 2B A B R A =R using the effective interest method; and
=R
(iv) B B A - P RE S IR (iv)  dividend income, when the shareholder’s
RAE AR Bz #E A right to receive payment is established.
R o
321 EEEA 3.21 Employee benefits
BRIKIEF Retirement benefits
EE 2 RREFFERRE Retirement benefits to employees are provided

HRET Bl -
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BE& R - @RS E
ZEERBNERASE
B-EAEEZEENH
BB AEEMBESS
S H B = R -
eagEEESME -

through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way
to the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee
left the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vested fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer’s contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China except Hong
Kong and Macau (“Mainland China”) are required
to participate in a retirement benefits scheme (the
“RB Scheme"”) operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
RB Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the RB Scheme is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under the
RB Scheme. Contributions under the RB Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable
to these plans.

O
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= ERBRME 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
({:5) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
321 EERH (&) 3.21 Employee benefits (continued)
FTHIE 575 7 Short-term employee benefits
EEZFBRENNERE Employee entitlements to annual leave are
ZRER - AEEREE recognised when they accrue to employees. A
HEAHIEEEEREZ provision is made for the estimated liability for
RR 75 B 4 2 SE (R 2 (st annual leave as a result of services rendered by
BEEDEE- employees up to the reporting date.
FE 2 RANA R R ER Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
HEBRRDSER- sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
3.22 AR HERE 2 RN 3.22 Share-based compensation
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All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the equity instruments
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).
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3.22 Share-based compensation (continued)
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All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in reserve will
be transferred to share capital. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year.
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324 FiEHETRE (&) 3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary differences arising from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in
equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.
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324 FiEHETRE (&) 3.24 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

BNERFH IR & 2= & B EAR I8 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

BEESRUATNBERAF presented in net if, and only if,

B2 :

(a) ANE& B HOEHF 58 Hi B (@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to
TEFNBEERZE® set off the recognised amounts; and
REHEH &

(b) FFEILOFREREELH (b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
SRR B & E RS to realise the asset and settle the liability
BRE- simultaneously.

AEEEFEGHRATERA The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

FREZVRERIBEEK tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

BT IBEE

(@) BEBMOEHARHIFNIT (@  the entity has a legally enforceable right to
e BN EA R 18 & 2= set off current tax assets against current tax
ELENEARL IR B EH liabilities; and
iH &
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of debt
instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

Financial guarantee contract (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income. Where the consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 3.18 if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

~l
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HEZZT—tFA=THIFE
= ERTBURE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
(éS) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.26 BUNF#ED 3.26 Government grants
B 05 BT R e R Government grants are recognised when there is
[FHB)  MASRBEERFE reasonable assurance that they will be received and
TER T 4 B P Bl 75 2 A £ - that the Group will comply with the conditions
NEE 2 ERBNRHE attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
HEAEBERELERSZ 2 Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
e REARSZ 2R— revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
Hﬂ?ﬁﬁ% SN = Ed VK same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
REWGR HEREEE Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
ERAZ BB EERE asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
TR HIENZIEE asset and consequently are effectively recognised in
2 2 AR A FHAAE R A profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
MERXAARERAE of reduced depreciation expense.
PR FERR
327 DEEIF 3.27 Segment reporting

AEEFHRREREER
RE(NRITER)ER
NEBA IS E R AR
AARERBHEKRED Z
BRDECIERTE - AR it
mERAZSEKED 2
=B MAKE AR EZ
FEREINEEN R
HAOMER -AATES
2,2 NEBA B ERHZ A
SETEXBERETER
TEAERER D ©

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major line of business.
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= EEGFBIRBE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
() ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27 Segment reporting (continued)

REBECE DA TAIZ25H

£

- RFREHEER

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and

BEEGREEMHNEA trading of fine jewellery and diamonds
— MERE = Property investment
— IR - Mining operation
- K& - Investment

NS Em KRB ERT
ZTRERENSHEEN
RN EEEDME

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing

BTEHBYET A approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
DEHEE(WAEA carried out at arm’s length prices.
FEBET

AEBERBEBUBRE
R £ A IE2 |0 28
KB EBBREERE
BRMBHREERREZ
MR EANRAEMRR
HeCARE SR AR 2 FEAG B
BREINAERERS
ETRERA PS5
STUA R I FE B B SR B (AR
BEDHZIEH RS
NEMRA KR I EA

==
4 o

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that the share of
results of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method, certain finance costs,
income tax expense and corporate income and
expenses which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment, are not
included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

O



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B 18R E Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+tFA=THIFE

H

EZEBREE
()

327 2R (E)

DHEERRMEEE"
HRE RIREFHE
BMIREE NEERRZ
E F IS USRI
RSN e b SN - W IR EH 5 57
JBEEED R 2 XH5m
B RRBEETENRE
DEE EERAKEAEH

FEH o

DERBETEREILIFERE
BEBIEMEED 2 EH
BB ZRITER &
N —fREERRIFKIEA 12
BRBRIR 2 B B 7%
EREE HERE R
ERBERERARAG

328 BEEAL

(a) fHBIA T AL BlEx
AT EZATRRE
B2 KEMK B EAR

SEMERE:

() HAKEEHFIES
RS AR I -

(i) HAEBEHEK

TEN K

(i) SAEEH AR
RIBRAZEE

BEIBAB-

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

3.28

Segment reporting (continued)

Segment assets include all assets but cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests in
associates and interests in joint ventures. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment
are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, certain
amount due to a related company, loan from
a controlling shareholder, financial guarantee
liabilities, provision for tax, deferred tax liabilities
and corporate liabilities, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0] has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management

personnel of the Group or the
Company'’s parent.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company’s
parent.
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EEEFBRBRE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
(%) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
328 BEAL (& 3.28 Related parties (continued)
AR A TREREY) 2 K EE Close members of the family of a person are those
KB fE A TR E S family members who may be expected to influence,
ETRSRBHANZEZ or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
ATHZEFZE 7 KEK with the entity and include:
88
() mALTZFRREE (i) that person’s children and spouse or
HREEHAE domestic partner;
(i) A TEB KM (ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
B2 Fx: & partner; and
(i) FZ ALz A T BB (i)~ dependents of that person or that person’s
IREHBEIZE spouse or domestic partner.
S
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the duration
and extent to which the fair value of specific investment
is less than its cost are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness, the collateral security
and the past collection history of each customer. The
management of the Group reassesses the estimation at the
reporting date.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables (continued)

When the Group’s management determines the receivables
from customers are uncollectable, they are written off
against the provision made. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group, on whose account provision
for impairment has been made, were improved and no
impairment of their ability to make payments were noted,
reversal of provision for impairment may be required.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made,
which is considered to be the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. All non-financial assets
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in note 3.11.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

ul
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Valuation of mining right

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group’s mining right so as to
assess whether there are any indicators of impairment at
each reporting date. The fair value of the mining rights is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
recent comparable transactions undertaken in the mining
industry which generally represent the best estimate of
the market value. Any changes in economic conditions
and mineral prices and the availability of comparable
transactions may materiality affect the estimation of the fair
value of mining right.

Amortisation of mining right and depreciation of
mining structures

Mining right and mining structures are amortised/
depreciated on the units of production method based
on the total proven and probable mineral reserves of the
ore mines. The directors of the Company exercised their
judgement in estimating the total proven and probable
reserves of the ore mines.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expenses in the periods in which such
estimate is changed. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

Valuation of financial guarantee contract

The directors use their judgement in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique in order to measure the fair value of
the provision of financial guarantee contract to the wholly-
owned subsidiary of its joint venture during the year ended
30 June 2017. The fair value of the financial guarantee
contract is estimated by an independent professional valuer
based on the probability of default of the borrower.

Fair value measurement
A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's

consolidated financial statements require measurement at,
or disclosure of, fair value.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in
the valuation technique utilised are:

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair values:

o Investment property

Available-for-sale financial assets

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

. Derivative financial instruments

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to note 16
and note 46.5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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B SEER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
REBEAREEZERRERN The Group determines its operating segments based on the
CREETEEN I ZERE reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
ARFERE RSB EIR are used to assess performance and allocate resources.
RARZHITEZREZZER The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
A oA P FE3.27 P FF A - R the Company's executive directors. The executive directors
TEZRERAEEMARBER have identified the Group's four business lines as operating
EREEDEL segments as further described in note 3.27.

(@ EHBHEB (a)  Business segment
Rt g EER
REXEENRAR NERE REEH ##& &a
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and Property Mining
diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated

w7 N6 w7 6 W07 06 W0 W6 W7 Ni6
FEr  7Er  fEr TEr  fEr TEr  fEr AL fEr TR
HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSUDD AKSODD  HKSUD HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSURD

Al Seqment revenue:
HEFNRER/  Sdestolievente from

erip Vit el extenal parties 483084 543152 133500 - 8,981 9,0% 1728 67 62123 552575
e+ Segment results (12,008)  (14,086) 40,119 4,659 (37351)  (47,769) (6:319) (2375 (15649)  (59571)
WRGEZEREZHRE  Share-based compensation @m0 239
RARMA Unalocated income 37 i
AARRER Unallocated expenses @nn) (250
BBERBERE  homearsng fom amortising

FEEZHA the financial quarantee liabltes 5789 3167
R Finance costs (o118) (1294
EEAEREEE  Shareof esults of oint ventures ;0 (11177)
BEEHA ProftLoss)

&/ (B8) before ncome tax 102549 (186,055
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h SEEB @) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
() EBHI(E (a)  Business segment (continued)

Bit-4a-£RR

REAEENRER PERE REEH bid B&
Design, manufacturing,

marketing and trading

of fine jewellery and Property Mining

diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated

w07 N6 w7 06 W7 06 00 W6 W7 Ni6
Fér  FAr FEn 7Ar FEr TEr fEr TAT  FEn TAX
HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSODO  HKSUD  AKSOOD  HKSUOD  HKSODD  HKSODD  HKSURD

&y D]
Represented Represented

ABEE Seqment assets 344557 365,146 34 1054141 713,541 748,05 124 2,000 107935 2,194343
REEREZER  Interestin joint ventures 854828 708636
ReRREER Cash and cash equivaents 6 45632
ELREBEE Deferred tax assets 5,762 5,762
AARATEE Unallocated corporate assets m m
EEGE Total asses 2314865 2,954,644
? %EE f Seqment liabilies 88459 139799 34 4958 37,444 39597 51,585 7983 msa 7692
RAER Bank loans 119000 571548
ER-HEBLAFRE Duetoareated company - 90000
BRBERREZER  Loanfom a controling shareholder 4606 131670
BBERAR Finandial quarantee liablites 17,137 5,656
RERR Provision for tax 230 2%
ERERERE Defered ta labiites w5132 147718
AARATRE Unallocated corporate liablites 4,69 4891
BELE Total igbities 470400 1,230,703
ETEEENHEEZ Certain comparative figures on the measurement
LLBRBFEEY  AFE of the segment assets have been represented to
REFZ 2257 e conform the current year's presentation.
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B SERER @ 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
() EBHE(E) (a)  Business segment (continued)

Bit-4a £RR

REREENRER NERE REEH %% Ga
Design, manufacturing,

marketing and trading

of fine jewellery and Property Mining

diamonds investment operation Investment Consolidated

w7 W6 w7 6 W07 M6 W0 W6 W7 Ni6
F#r  7Er  fEr TEr  fEr TEr  fEr AL fEr TR
HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSUDD  AKSODD HKSUD HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSURD

AfpAiER: Other segment nformation:
nE BER Depreciation of property

RENE plant and equipment @502 (613 - = (1166) (1599 - - (5668 (1.72)
T REEY Amortisaton of land use rights (109) (109 - - (1240 (1.257) - - (139 (1366)
FERRs Amortisation of mining right - - - - (656) (705) - - (656) (705)
RENFATE Change in fair value of

pa L) investment property 700 - - 1,112 - - - - 700 1112

—EEERT  Gain on debt extinguishment arisng
w\IEFﬁEEZ from recogniton of amount due to
ERERYE arelated company - - - - - 20 - - - 20
fERBTEZATE Fairvalue (oss)igain on derivative
(BB)/ ki financia instruments (149) 0 - - - - - - (149) 02

WATEFABSZ  Fairvalue gainfloss) on finandal
SHEE/ATE  assetsatfairvalue thiough

b&/ (BB) profit o loss - - - - = = 1508 (1804 158 (1804
HEME BER  Lossondsposal of property

RECER plant and equipment 0] - - - - (6) - - ® )
iz wE White-offof property,

&L plant and equipment (2.974) (163) - - (188 - - - (4859 (163)
HE-FMERE  Ganon disposal of asubsidary

pA - - - - - - - -
AEHEZSHEE  Impaimentloss on avalble-

REFE forsale financal asets - - - - - - 83 () @831 (457)
REEREER Impairment loss on mining right - - - - - (6417) - - - B4
W& BERRE  Impaiment loss on property,

REER plant and equipment - - - - (B (944) - - (33 (944)
FERG Provision for inventories (659) (5955 - - - - - - (6593) (5955
BARMTA (Proviion)Reversal of provison

(BB)/BEET  fortrade receivables (220) 583 - = = = = = (20) 583
WSEBAFUE 2R Witeoff of prepayments,

Afb YNGR deposis and other receivables - (48) - - - - - - - (468)
FISHA Interest income - - - - - - 1327 El) 1327 ]
ﬂ EEH Interest expenses - - - = @) B - = @) B

REFiD Addiions to non-current

PHEE seqment assels 3M 2364 4,106 13,939 3238 453 - - 055 20836
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group's segment revenue from external
customers and its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas.

15 o
RKEMRERZW SR
Revenue from
external customers
2017 2016
Fi#ET FET
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BB (EBAEM) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 181,026 43,873
=M North America 200,245 224,394
BN K2 A B Europe and Middle East 221,312 258,108
Eth 3 (= Other locations 24,710 26,200
a&t Total 627,293 552,575
FERBEE
Non-current assets
2017 2016
Fi#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB (EBAMEH) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 45,812 478,994
S United Kingdom 3,724 4,107
RET N Mainland China 1,587,738 1,483,915
Efthih @ Other locations = 2
a5t Total 1,637,274 1,967,018




Annual Report 2017 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2017
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i oEER @) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEER (&) (b)  Geographical information (continued)
A EW s E R TIR B R P The revenue information above is based on the
ZHETEID o IERENE location of the customers. The geographical location
E(emTAREERE of the non-current assets (other than financial
BERIN 2 HIBAETY instruments and deferred tax assets) is based on the
RIEEEER TR fmE physical location of the assets.
/]_j\ o
PITESEEASEERE The executive directors determine the Group is
FrEmES  HRARE domiciled in Hong Kong, which is the location of the
| 2 42 B AT Group's principal office.
FTEFEFEH Information about major customers
RESEERF ((HRRIK Revenue from each of the major customers, which
#10%8 A E&) 2 s amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is
T set out below:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
P H Customer A TER N/A 92,496
BFRZ Customer B TE R N/A 62,683
=2FER Customer C TEH N/A 60,379

(EZT—tFAH=T

HIEFE  WEEFEAR
EEREEBBI0% - EHZE
—E—REXNA=TAL
FE RE-ZHZETERF
22 BERENER
FoRE HEREER
EEfiiEBERZDER

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June 2017.
For the year ended 30 June 2016, the revenue
from three major customers was all derived by
the segment engaging in design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of fine jewellery and
diamonds.
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EEHEMCBERFE HEH
EHRYE FEBRARKREZK
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AREBEKE 2T :

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, sale of
property under development, interest income and dividend
income from investments.

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue is as follows:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

HESm Sale of goods 483,084 543,152
HESE Sale of gold ores 8,981 9,056
SHEZRRP Y Sale of property under development 133,500 =
A2 U A Interest income 1,327 30
"EZIREMA Dividend income from investments 401 337
627,293 552,575
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£ BEHRAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
2017 2016
Fi#&T FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERX: Interest charges on:
RITER Bank loans 7,913 12,210
ERARERIE R 2 B2 Interest expenses on loan from
F B X a controlling shareholder 797 2,080
FE —fEREE R A Interest expenses on amount due to
KIB 2 F B a related company 870 1,637
BEHERE REEA Finance charges on obligation under
finance leases 42 62
FEfTREE A RIGKIEFTEA 2  Imputed interest expenses arising from
FESF A BRI amounts due to related companies 4,938 5,403
REEKAR Total borrowing costs 14,560 21,392
B TYIEE AR Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
IRITE A E
— 1 EME (ME+) — investment property (note 16) (794) (1,839)
— BRI — property under development
(ffsE=+=) (note 22) (1,527) (3,536)
12,239 16,017
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—tFRA=THILFE

(@)

FRET15%

BATEF

(B518)

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RNEBRRATS AR, The Group's profit/(loss) before

(&) &3k, (5T A) income tax is arrived at

AT IE B #50: after charging/(crediting):

BEEHFEERA Cost of inventories sold 489,294 440,079
ME BB RREBITE Depreciation of property,

(MIEE+m) plant and equipment (note 14) 5,668 7,722
ZE A BN & Auditor’s remuneration 960 1,153
3 (55 A A B Amortisation of land use rights

(K¥sE+H) (note 15) 1,349 1,366
PRuERE S o (B aE 1) Amortisation of mining right (note 17) 656 705
THREFLEEHE 2 Minimum lease payments

HEBEK under operating leases on

land and buildings 3,628 4,655
T = AR Provision for inventories* 6,593 5,955
NFEFABZZEBEE  Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets

Z’AEFE (Wz) E518 at fair value through profit or loss (1,548) 1,804
PTEeMITAZAFEE Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative

BB (as) financial instruments

—RHEEEL — forward currency contracts 149 (202)
I B 1E Net foreign exchange loss 2,185 11,527
HEWE - BB K Loss on disposal of property,

X2 E1E plant and equipment 4 6
HEREN —fEHEER T Gain on debt extinguishment arising

REFEEZ from recognition of amount

BEREE NS due to a related company = (2,222)
MEEREERILER Income arising from derecognition of

BT A& 2 WA financial guarantee liabilities (4,377) =
IR %8 B Government grants (472) (650)
B 5B R, Provision/(Reversal of provision) for

(e o) trade receivables 220 (543)
Wﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂlﬁ . }Efﬁﬁ Wirite-off of prepayments,

A fEIGR deposits and other receivables = 468
E—fEE “ﬁé%m Impairment loss on amount due from

ﬁTEJEﬂEJ a joint venture — 150
WEE T3 - RS K% Write-off of property, plant and

equipment 4,859 163

* FRZEER %EuJF)\”A * Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost

Ba kA2 S of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of
[HHERA] A profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

& BB EERBIIFITME # Government grants are mainly received from ;T F9m3E,T

TELERER(ZF—X
FOIMMETIREERE
&) YRER 2 5RI8 - 1t Th R AR
SE—RHNBAREZRE
TRXIAE) - AR fE B &
RBITHRMRHAREIR

& 4B RAE R (2016 :

pAN s R < Do)

@

{23 /3 ) for one

of the Group's subsidiaries in respect of business activities
carried on in this area. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies related to these grants.
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e BBHRAX S (KE) 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

BEMNESHIIAELEERES Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
B 2 T FE AR Bl m FI I 7 = 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (ZF — X% :16.5% ) arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
ST o H th 3 [2 B SR g K 2 ¢ assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
THIR AR S B S TG R 2 A rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
BERRERCTESE W operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
BzEa AR RITEN  Z practices in respect thereof.

BB o

2017 2016
Fi# T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B EAR 18 Current tax
B Hong Kong 4,546 79
HREE AR HFE People’s Republic of China 4 3
NEFEERETR Under/(Over) provision
(EBEEE ) in prior years 121 (1,574)
4,671 (1,492)
BEERTE (s =—+1) Deferred tax (note 34)
KEEZ Current year (573) (8,871)
i8R (k) sa5E Total income tax expense/(credit) 4,098 (10,363)
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h FEBRX (KR)
(%)

Frfs M, (%) RIZEM
BMEAEzeEN,/ (BE)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

Z AR
2017 2016
FETT TBT
HK$'000 HK$000
BRETISEL AR A, (E5i8) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 102,549 (186,055)
A EE16.5% Tax on profit/(loss) before income tax,
(ZZE—7R%¥:165%) calculated at the statutory rate of
T E ZBRPRSHAT 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
wmAL (B8 ) B 16,921 (30,699)
REAM AR L E 2 Effect of different tax rates of
MBARTRME 22 subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (2,492) (5,028)
EHAEEEBEZHIFFE  Tax effect of share of results of
joint ventures (20,297) 18,443
TRAIMBRAZ 2 R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8,922 3,679
IR A 2 BT s & Tax effect of non-taxable income (5,848) (2,466)
BABEARERZFIERIE  Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (332) (42)
RERHIBEBEZREFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 9,422 8,283

ﬂiﬁ@u/b = E‘I%%EZ%RZ_&??%’E

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised (2,319) (959)

NEFERETR Under/(Over) provision in prior years
(EBRER ) 121 (1,574)
FrE®iEY (%) Income tax expense/(credit) 4,098 (10,363)
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+- K2 10. DIVIDENDS
EETEBMEE_Z—LFX The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends
A= ‘f‘ B I F E K E AR A in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).
—E—RFEE)
+— 8REN (BE) 11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
RATIEE AR EMREAR R # The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
SEAF (B8) TR T 5 8% attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
FTE: following data:
2017 2016
F#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRUAGTESRERNZF], Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners
(BE) ZARFHEEA of the Company for the purpose of
FEMREF, (E58) basic earnings/(loss) per share 98,306 (175,666)
BinE R
Number of shares
2017 2016
G E G EAR Weighted average number of
B (BE) 2 LRk ordinary shares for the purpose of
hntEFE5 basic earnings/(loss) per share 6,831,182,580 6,831,182,580
T?'Jxlﬁiﬁﬁzwﬁﬁﬁ% Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
Bk B shares in respect of
*E\%Hﬂé (B3EG)) — Share option (note (i)) = =
R AT & Rk #E Weighted average number of
BAH,/ (BER) 2 L@k ordinary shares for the purpose of
hntEFE diluted earnings/(loss) per share 6,831,182,580 6,331,182,580
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REBEEZZT—tF A=
BIEFEE ARAIER AR
IEEREXRAF, (EBE)TY
BERARR R HER AEMN =T
98,306,000 7L (= Z — 7~
£ : [518175,666,000/% JT.)
Ko G A 3 AR 0 #E 5 #
6,831,182,580/% ( == — /X
£ :6,831,182,5800% ) 51 -
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—ANENA=TRHLEFE:
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11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

Note:

(i) The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2017 is based on the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$98,306,000 (2016: loss
of HK$175,666,000) and on the weighted average number
of 6,831,182,580 (2016: 6,831,182,580) ordinary shares

during the year.

For the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, the
computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share does not

assume the exercise of share options as they were anti-

dilutive.

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS'

+=) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 13)
2017 2016
FETT FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
B e R R Wages, salaries, allowances and
BN = benefits in kind 93,779 90,157
FE R FRIK Contributions on defined contribution
STEIE K retirement plans 9,021 8,831
VABR 13 7% 518 2 % B Share-based compensation 2,140 2,390
104,940 101,378
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+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

AT ZEE EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS
(a) ES=Me (a) Directors’ emoluments
RIBERB R aIEH (5 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to S.383
622% ) E3831Kk KR Al of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
(BEREEMNEER) AR and the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
B (5£622GE ) WE2 & Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) is as
EHMT - follows:
2017 2016
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
-k Directors’ fees 225 200
Fe EBNREYHZE  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 10,806 12,036
1E4L Bonus 1,870 726
RINEFIFT B K Contributions to retirement
benefit schemes 532 439
AR BEGR 2 538 Share-based payment 2,140 2,390
T < 28 58 Total emoluments 15,573 15,791
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= EEHFMRANES 13.

FATZEME =)

(@) E=M= (&)

FRAENKENSESFZ

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the

[ R N directors during the year were as follows:
BES-tERAZTHLERE
Year ended 30 June 2017
e BHR RIKEF B B
SIS BUH& 218 AEER  BRZAR st
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors'  and benefits benefit ~ Share-based
fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
(FHEG)) (Pt ()
(note (i) (note (ii))
wrEs: Executive directors:
RE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,000 600 261 - 3,861
fj\:3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 500 103 - 2,883
REL Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,056 190 47 535 1828
BiEu Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 2,088 330 9% 535 3,047
BER Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1,380 250 18 535 2183
EER (MzE() Yam Tat Wing (note (iv) - 1,002 - 9 535 1,546
FHTES: Non-executive director:
R (FrEw) Yam Tat Wing (note (iv)) 25 - - - - 25
BUkHiTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
RBA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
B Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
HERIE Sze Irons 50 - - - - 50
K8 Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - - 50
&3t Total 25 10,806 1,870 532 2,140 15,573
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+= - EEFMRINES 13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
AT ZENE @) EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) BEME (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

BE-TNERAZTHIERE

Year ended 30 June 2016
5 RER AR AR R
Yk ENfla bz AN R0 AR st
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit  Share-based
Directors' fees in kind Bonus schemes payment Total

TET TET TET AT TET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000

GE) (Pr3EGi))

(note (i) (note (i)
nirES: Executive directors:
REz Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,600 190 174 = 3,964
L¢3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 2,280 190 103 - 2573
R2 Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 1,032 86 46 597 1,761
REL Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 1,776 148 80 597 2,601
Epit Wong Edward Gwon-hing - 1,304 12 18 598 2072
R (HizEw) Yam Tat Wing (note (iv) - 2,004 - 18 598 2,620
FUTES: Non-executive director:
T8l (B3 Gin ) Fang Gang (note (ii) - - - = = =
BikpmEs: Independent non-executive

directors:

RBA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - - 50
R Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - - 50
i e Sze lrons 50 - - - - 50
RS Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 = = = = 50
5t Total 200 12,036 726 439 2,390 15,791
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(v) EEER T —tF—
A—BHARARITE
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100,000/ 7T 2 Bl & o

13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) The bonus is determined by the individual
performance of the directors.

(ii) These amounts represent the estimated value of
share options granted to the directors under the
Company'’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the
accounting policies for share-based payments as
set out in note 3.22 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the options granted
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(iii) Fang Gang resigned as Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 25 September 2015.

(iv) Yam Tat Wing was re-designated from Executive
Director to Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 1 January 2017.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, one of the
former non-executive director, Mr. Fang Gang,
waived his emoluments for the year ended 30 June
2015 which amounted to HK$100,000.
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13. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND
EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Saved as disclosed, there was no other arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year. No directors
waived any emoluments during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016 were
all directors of the Company and details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

ul
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(@)

+M - 3 - BB R 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EFRAR fffh %8
HELH NERE REEYE  BRERME RBRAE #EIR %
Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings and equipment
Leasehold leasehold Mining Plantand ~ and motor  Construction
land  improvements structures  machinery vehicles in progress Total
TET FBT AT T FiET AT &7
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
HE_ZT-7% Year ended 30 June 2016
ANAZTHLER
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount 2418 36,857 43,469 5942 7998 751 104,255
NE Additions - 609 2,664 521 1,293 1,810 6,897
HE /s Disposals/Witen off - (117) - 9 (4s) - (171)
Vil Depreciation 83) (3522) (33) (468) (3616) = (1.722)
AEEE Impairment loss - (293) (369) (26) 6) (250) (944)
RNk Exchange realignment - (3133 (3.354) (394) (419) (584) (7,884)
EXRERH Closing net carrying amount 2,335 30,401 42317 5,566 5,205 8,547 94,431
RZF-AEAAZTH  At30June 2016
R Cost 5,052 93,379 45,769 58471 60,702 10,730 274,109
ZHMERR(E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment 2,717) (62,978) (3392) (52,911) (55,497) (2,183) (179,678)
REFR Net carrying amount 2,335 30,401 4231 5,566 5,205 8,547 94,431
HE_T-t% Year ended 30 June 2017
ANAZTHLEE
ENREFE Opening net carrying amount 2335 30,401 423771 5,566 5,205 8,547 94,431
NE Additions - 1,720 - 4 1,498 3,227 6,449
HE /M DisposalsMfitten off - (3,192) - (1471) (225) - (4,888)
e Depreciation 1) (3,051) (31) (318) (2,197) - (5,668)
AEEE Impairment loss - (464) (18933) (228) (39) (3710) (23.374)
Ry Surplus on revaluation 33,885 2,500 = = = = 36,385
EREEME (HT77)  Transfer to investment property
(note 16) (34,600) (2,500) - - - - (37,100)
R Exchange realignment - (422) (577) ) (50) (116) (1,236)
FRREFH Closing net carrying amount 1,549 24,992 22,836 3,482 4192 7,948 64,999
RZF-tERAZTH  At30June 2017
KA Cost 3,538 86,524 45,145 45,552 54,690 13,810 249,259
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,989) (61,532) (22,309) (42,070) (50,498) (5,862) (184,260)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,549 24,992 22,836 3,482 4192 7,948 64,999
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(&)

ftaz
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RZE—+F X A=1+8"
43,304,000 w2 &/ T
¥ BERFEEEESE
BEA—ERSEEEN
(RBEHRSEESEMN—])
AR HEARBRRSELAE
i — TR E G HP
23,374,0008 L2 & TEE
FR 70 T8 TE PR 51 & B PR AT
R B RE.

FREESEAEN— 2T
Uiz [B] & %8 4 526,861,000/
TL DIRBN\FEBR 2B SR
STER HKARRRESRE
T8 R I% BB A B R B AN
BT ARETRSELESE
iz AU el 5 B8 2 BR R il 5t
REZHAT

NEFEHAZ F1553%
#R K
Fifg Ah IR = 15.35%

EREDRERER SR
Bl — 2 BERRARH T
BUR 2 BMETHE MK
REBR-FER S E LB
—2 AT EBEIBATE

=
=°

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2017, certain property, plant and equipment
of HK$43,304,000, which were related to one of the cash-
generating units of the mining operation (“Mining CGU
1), were assessed for impairment under this Mining CGU |
and certain of these assets amounting to HK$23,374,000
were impaired as a result of the delay of the predetermined
mining plan.

The recoverable amount of this Mining CGU | amounting
to approximately HK$26,861,000 has been determined
based on the fair value less costs of disposal using
discounted cash flow projection which was based on the
cash flow projection for a period of 8 years. Key estimates
and assumptions used for determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU are as follows:

Growth rate during Average of 3%

the 8-year period

Post-tax discount rate 15.35%

Estimates and assumptions are determined by management
based on the past performance of the Mining CGU | and
management’s expectation for the market development.
The fair value of the Mining CGU | is a level 3 fair value
measurement.
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(b)

R-F—ARE~A=1+AH"
REBETHME BE K&
HHEREEFS —EReE
EEN((KERSELE
fI=1) B BEREREMA
ZHRECEEBNEmETR
BFfE-R_T—A~FxA
=18 » 49944,0007% 7t Z &
BEEREBIEMBANEEY
¥ BE RSB EEE (M
H+E) e

RZZT—tFNA=+
H ANEBBEREFELN
12,131,000/ 7L (= ZF — 7~
£ :14,136,00058 7T) 2 &
THRE L RIEFEHIE
B ERAEEEEZ — K
IRITEERE 2 R (s
=t

R=F—+tFA=1+A8"
B ZRE S E R E AR
BEHERABZEEARH
581,000/ 7T (=& — /<4 ¢
1,055,000 7T ) ©

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

As at 30 June 2016, certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group, which were related to another cash-
generating unit of the mining operation (“Mining CGU
II”), were combined with the mining right for impairment
assessment at that cash-generating unit level. As at 30 June
2016, impairment loss of approximately HK$944,000 was
allocated to write down the carrying value of the Group's
property, plant and equipment (note 17).

At 30 June 2017, the Group's certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts of
approximately HK$12,131,000 (2016: HK$14,136,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 28).

At 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of motor vehicles
includes an amount of HK$581,000 (2016: HK$1,055,000)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.
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15.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represented prepaid
operating lease payments and the movements in their net
carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

2017 2016

F#ET FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

FHRE 5 Opening net carrying amount 34,687 38,784
FAHEHER Amortisation charge for the year (1,349) (1,366)
PE 37 5 & Exchange realignment (430) (2,731)
FREREFEE Closing net carrying amount 32,908 34,687
RZE—tFSA=+H & At 30 June 2017, the Group's certain land use rights with

%] BR M 48 581,305,000 7T (=
T—N4F 1,341,000 70) 25
FruFERAREEHER EAK
SEERZ —RBTEEREZ
ER(sE=1+ ) e

BREW=

AEEZELHER B ARNE
T FERNBEZMBENEER
SR KAERABERFIREY
R zBEME iﬂﬁéﬁﬁ"ifﬁ
BREVRRENERER

BE o

16.

aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,305,000 (2016:
HK$1,341,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

O
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

RERE M BRRKZES 2 RA S Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
FEEFBAMAOT consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:
2017 2016
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRE SR Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 472,930 446,040
NE Additions 4,106 13,939
BEARZ RITERFE Bank loan interest capitalised
(M&EL) (note 7) 794 1,839
NEEAEMENEFE Net gain from fair value adjustments 700 11,112
& — R B2 A Disposal of a subsidiary
(BsEm+F) (note 45) (477,830) -
Y% - RE M ek e Transfer from property, plant and
(HizE+mm) equipment (note 14) 37,100 =
FREESRE Carrying amount at end of the year 37,800 472,930

FA-FIEBEE2EZELER
FEFEEE TEEEEANK
BHEIE-

R_ZT—+tF A=1+H &E
MEBRZEFERTHEERA A
(ZZ—"F FETRAERME
PRAG ([FEFT]) )ERA ™S
E(ZE—NF WG E)#ETT
18 151 2 {18 A37,800,000
B (ZZF—754F £ 472,930,000
BIT) e EERAEHIER
W32 PR~ FE Sk AR 1B R, -
MAAEMISEEE RS KB 2
BIRER N BE MG

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Investment property was valued at 30 June 2017 by
Roma Appraisals Limited (2016: LCH (Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited (“LCH")) at HK$37,800,000 (2016:
HK$472,930,000) by adopting the market approach (2016:
market approach). The market approach considers the
sales, listing or offerings of similar or substitute properties
and related market data establishes a value estimate by
processes involving comparison.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment property is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

RAFEGSHREREAT opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:
2017 2016
F#ET FAETT
HK$000 HK$ 000
FAEEER Opening balance
(FIBLEHEATH) (level 3 recurring fair value) 472,930 446,040
NE Additions 4,106 13,939
BEAREZRITERFE Bank loan interest capitalised
(P&E£) (note 7) 794 1,839
N ERARME NS FE Net gain from fair value adjustments 700 11,112

HE R EAR

Disposal of a subsidiary

(P EEr +3) (note 45) (477,830) -
I - R R % e Transfer from property,

(MsE+m) plant and equipment (note 14) 37,100 -
FRER Closing balance

(FIEBLEHEATE) (level 3 recurring fair value) 37,800 472,930

BERFFHFAEITABRZ
F PSR BT 2 R A

Change in unrealised gains or losses
for the year included in profit or loss
for assets held at the end of the year 700 11,112

NHEREN LR E Y ERFE
sEERNER (BEERBEIL
BEAR) HER-

The fair value measurement is based on the above
investment property’s highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair

RNEBEZER value of the investment property is determined.
EXRLEER EARZBZONE
Bl fHER EXEEHERAE BAEZEE BNTEZREF
Relationship of significant
Significant Range of significant unobservable inputs
Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016
REME k7473 ik NEER WNFNE- +- 4% +H-2% MERARTERENE L
Investment property Market Market A RIBE -7% -25% BEAR ATEAR.
approach approach  Quality of properties such as The higher the quality of

R—ZE—tFRNA=1+H &&
%] B 8 < 837,800,000/ 7T ( =
T —7N4F 1 472,930,000/8 7T ) Z
REMECKER (ERAKE
BRZBITEHEE ZER (M T
—F+) e

location, size and level of

the properties

properties with reference to
comparables, the higher the
fair value is.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group's investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$37,800,000 (2016:
HK$472,930,000) was pledged to secure a bank borrowing
granted to the Group (note 28).
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++t - HRiE#E 17. MINING RIGHT

2017 2016

FET FETL

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FYIRREF Opening net carrying amount 656,334 751,427
FAHEHEER Amortisation charge for the year (656) (705)
FAREREME Provision of impairment for the year = (36,417)
PE I F 2 Exchange realignment (8,939) (57,971)
FRREFRE Closing net carrying amount 646,739 656,334
AREAREE Gross carrying amount 964,396 977,711
Rt EEH Accumulated amortisation (4,366) (3,761)
REDRERE Accumulated provision for impairment (313,291) (317,616)
AR HE Net carrying amount 646,739 656,334

R-ZFB—RFENA=+H K&
X KBRS EEBM 27
Y B & B AR AR X TR R B R AR
28R (F3BAFEFE)
BE-RERSELBEM -2
ERFARA REREXER
RETfhERIEE L R BRIAE

s B‘EW%ZF*%{EEW&IEWJ&
BRARHET
RIZE—REXNA=1H HE

ReEXBEMN -2 ATERLE
KRAGRTHEER S BT
GAFT R T EHER CEAE
i Z RN ERE R 2 #H R RR
LAYE S B (AR 2 &IEGRT B
KI5

As at 30 June 2016, the recoverable amount of the Mining

CGU Il of the mining operation was determined based on

the measurement to fair value less costs of disposal, a level

3 fair value measurement. The valuation of the Mining
CGU Il was carried out by Dragon Appraisals Co. Ltd.,
an independent valuer who held recognised and relevant
professional qualifications and had recent experience in the
location and category of the mining right being valued.

The fair value less costs of disposal of the Mining CGU Il
as at 30 June 2016 was measured using recent sale and
purchase transactions under the market-based approach.
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the Mining CGU Il were based on the independent
professional valuer’s best estimate.
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17. MINING RIGHT (continued)

The significant unobservable inputs into the approach were
as follows:

2016

Bt E2ERZ T HEESLE

The range of uncertainty of estimated gold resources

RAEERRERBR

Adjusted consideration to resources multiple

Mt E S EIRZ T EE & E =
%’Q$@?ﬁ,wﬂﬁ§ﬁﬁ
ERF#TE AFEDS-

B BRAEMR G ERTHE
FEMRITEZREHE  ASCER
B4l

40% % 100%
40% to 100%

7228298
EXSEV)
HK$28.29

per gram to
HK$70

per gram

The higher the range of uncertainty of the estimated gold
resources was, the lower the fair value was. The higher the
adjusted consideration of resources multiple was, the higher
the fair value was.

The independent professional valuer exercised their
professional judgement to estimate the uncertainty of
resources to improve the valuation technique.
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++t - RBE @ 17. MINING RIGHT (continued)
REBEEZZE—X"FA=1H For the year ended 30 June 2016, with reference to
IEFE K2Z6@FMH & the assessment, the directors were of the view that the
ERRRBEBZRBRESE recoverable amount of the Mining CGU Il of mining business
BNz RE S RE M A was estimated to be HK$553,948,000 and therefore,
553,948,000/ 7T # E % Bl an impairment loss of HK$37,361,000 in respect of the
REEG  RBEREELEEM Mining CGU Il of the mining business was identified. The
Z 2B {EEE37,361,000/ T © impairment loss was allocated to write down the carrying
R 1B S 18 465 1 TRk PR B 4 DA 2 amount of mining right and property, plant and equipment
ME BERREREESED by HK$36,417,000 and HK$944,000 respectively. The
71136,417,0007%8 7T 52944,00075 impairment loss was included under mining operation of
Lo REBEFAREBREES the Group's operating segment. The impairment loss was
BT 2REES  REBEEE primarily due to the change of the range of uncertainty of
BRfErrEeERTETHE the estimated gold resources.
REBZE=—Z—+FA=1THI For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was no impairment
FE RKEEGZHKBERSES of Mining CGU Il of the mining operation.
B IR E -
T\ RBIENRZER 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2017 2016
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$°000
JE TR - FACAR Unlisted shares, at cost - -
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 6,034 6,034
B A Provision for impairment (6,034) (6,034)
2017 2016
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
JE U Bt & A B 5K IR Due from associates 1,259 1,259
VERIERE L Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259)

ul
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuec)

There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
amounts due from associates during the years ended 30
June 2017 and 2016.

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

The summarised financial information of the Group's
principal associate extracted from its management accounts
are as follows:

2017 2016
F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RANBA=1+H As at 30 June

EMBEE Non-current assets 235 264
mENEE Current assets 4,062 5,072
EmBEE Non-current liabilities - -
mBEE Current liabilities (616) (338)

BHEANA=THLEE For the year ended 30 June
e Revenue 2,370 2,790
F A E Loss for the year (1,702) (1,627)
H 2wk Other comprehensive income (68) (554)
2Rz AR Total comprehensive income (1,770) (2,181)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(&)
RZE—tFA=+H FZ Particulars of the principal associate as at 30 June 2017 are
NG = =3 (I N as follows:
ML/ AR R REEES
%8 ERRAMERRE gk FEREZENL  IEXE
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of paid-up registration and attributable
Name registered capital operations to the Group Principal activities
LEEHEHERAR  CARKRAAR0932447 AR 36 KE B HEE R B
General Jewellery (Shanghai)  Paid up capital of RMB9,093,244 Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited* and wholesaling
* FEBAB L EEREAE o Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.

BRARABRILERSRZ
HAppk B R B E

EERR LAARREE QR
IBFEFARGEBERREA
SAARAEEREBE AR EE
FBEZEBRBD EFERS 1E
HEMBENR 2 FBEEEHR
BRI K -

RBE-_ZT—tF X A=1H
IETEEERR-_ZT—LF XA
= THEGZAREREED R
#%608,000/ 7T (—Z — /R 4F:
581,000/ 7t ) }% 2,668,000
gL (ZZF — 7N : 2,060,000/
TT) °

The above associate of the Company which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the share of associates’

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

share of net asset of the associate by the Group. To give

details of other associates would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The share of unrecognised loss for the year ended 30 June
2017 and as at 30 June 2017 amounted to HK$608,000
(2016: HK$581,000) and HK$2,668,000 (2016:
HK$2,060,000) respectively.
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2017 2016

FET FHETT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

EIEEEFE Share of net assets 141,198 28,153
RIEH —HEaELELEY Deemed capital contribution to

a joint venture® 37,490 15,843

BT HEEREZER Loans to a joint venture 676,140 664,640

854,828 708,636

BT -HAELRE BHARE
A e REETERE EF
RARSHRBARRE BB
st EAREE-

g BRBRIREE —HEE
tEZ2EMNBRRZH
B HERARRRRZA A
ETZRTEERE (M
=T D) MRITIREM B E

The loans to a joint venture are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of

the directors, these loans are not repayable within twelve

months from the reporting date.

i The balance represented the deemed capital contribution

to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture,
representing the fair value of the financial guarantee
contracts provided by the Company to a bank for the
banking facility entered by that company (note 32).

REHZ AFE-
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
FEM & &1 FE IR Due from joint ventures 166 317
VERIEEE L Provision for impairment (150) (150)
16 167




Annual Report 2017 “F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+FRA=THILLFE

)

Th REEEFRZHER
(%)

19.

FEW— & B RFIAZRERE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of amount

HEHHMT due from a joint venture is as follows:
2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
FHEEER Balance at beginning of the year 150 =
R BERRE Impairment losses recognised - 150
FRAERR Balance at end of the year 150 150

FEMRIA S EER B NRAR

e
TRER -

=

R_E—tFRA=1TH B

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Particulars of the principal joint ventures as at 30 June 2017

EEDNEZFBOT: are as follows:
EMHL/ KERENR
A BETRARE At B FrERESR 2L TEEH
Percentage of
Place of ownership interest
Particulars of incorporation/ attributable
Name issued share capital registration to the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus 50,0008 S K EE 1%L RERLES 50 RERR
Developments Limited Lk British Virgin Islands Investment holding
50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BRERARAA Ei@R10,000% T BB 50 TELE (ZT—/F:
Multi-Minerals Limited Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Hong Kong BRES)
Inactive (2016: Trading of
mineral ores)
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REBEREG & FEWealth Plus
Developments Limited ( [ Wealth
Plus|) (REBRZES M
R RN BEBEE B EEE)
MEEERBRAR (REBT
MRS a8 v B B EE ) 9k
B50% (=T — 7<% :50% ) &
me ANRHERNEBIRMHE
ZECERECEETFEMER
Z MR+ MWealth Plus & 18 &
BERAREEZHEELHEELH
BEJENREEETHERZ
B -BBEABP B RELERE
1155 ZEELELERBRE S
2 WEFAERENEGRS B
BmE AR

19.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

The Group has 50% (2016: 50%) interests in joint ventures,
Wealth Plus Developments Limited (“Wealth Plus”), a
separate structured vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and operating in Hong Kong, and Multi-Minerals
Limited, a separate structured vehicle incorporated and
operating in Hong Kong. The contractual arrangement
provides the Group with only the rights to the net assets of
these joint arrangements, with the rights to the assets and
obligation for the liabilities of the joint arrangements resting
primarily with Wealth Plus and Multi-Minerals Limited.
Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements are classified
as joint ventures and have been accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
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THh -REELEZES 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(%) (continued)
KEBE 7 E KA &1 FEWealth The summarised financial information of Wealth Plus and its
Plusk E 2 &KTE AR ([Wealth wholly-owned subsidiary (“Wealth Plus Group”), a material
Pluste B | ) 2 BT & BHEZ A K joint venture of the Group, and reconciliation to the carrying
BE AR B RE VSRS 2 IR amount included in the Group's consolidated financial
HEB 2 HENT statements are as follows:
Wealth Plus £ E
Wealth Plus Group
2017 2016
Fi# T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RANA=+H As at 30 June
JEMENE EE Non-current assets 2,689,860 2,353,626
MENEE Current assets 80,050 60,913
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (1,510,666) (2,123,691)
mENB & Current liabilities (901,878) (202,867)
STALAFRIEZIER ¢ Included in the above amounts are:
BehBReER Cash and cash equivalents 35,601 29,623
RBTRMBE (TEFEES & Current financial liabilities
H b e FRIB) (excluding trade and other payables) (825,546) (126,110)
JEnEaE (TeEHMEN  Non-current liabilities (excluding
SRIA R HEA) other payables and provision) (1,510,666) (2,123,691)
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T -REELRZHER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(&) (continued)
Wealth Plus & &
Wealth Plus Group
2017 2016
F#ET FETL
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEANAZ=THILEEE For the year ended 30 June
& Revenue 143,509 87,481
FREA (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 246,022 (223,554)
H{th 2 U Other comprehensive income (19,930) (128,071)
2= AR Total comprehensive income 226,092 (351,625)
A LMGRIEZ I E Included in the above amounts are:
e Depreciation (677) (316)
FEHA Interest income 159 170
B Interest expense (70,480) (40,309)
TS (X)) % Income tax (expense)/credit (100,079) 71,428
HAEEREELEZ Reconciled to the Group's
HE 23 ¥ AR interests in the joint venture
BEECEERE Net assets of the joint venture 357,366 87,981
REE 2 BEREER Group's effective interest 50% 50%
REBEELEEEDRE Group's share of net assets of
BEFE the joint venture 178,683 43,991
HER: Represented by:
BihEeErEEERE Share of net assets of the joint venture 141,193 28,148
RIEHEEDFELE Deemed capital contribution to
the joint venture 37,490 15,843

REEE Carrying amount 178,683 43,991
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

Financial information of the joint venture that is immaterial

#} - to the Group:
2017 2016
F#T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEREGELHEZIREEE  Carrying amount of immaterial
joint venture 5 5
F N Al Profit for the year = =
Hh 2 e Other comprehensive income = =
FHEKRBEE Total comprehensive income = =
- AItHEZEMEE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2017 2016
F# T FHET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHRARE AT E: Listed equity investments, at fair value:
B Hong Kong 8,784 7,519
Efbipm (it & b)) Elsewhere (note (a) and (b)) 2,270 2,890
11,054 10,409
JEEMRAKE AR Unlisted equity investments,
(P 3E()) at cost (note () 19,092 19,092
BB Provision for impairment (14,861) (7,108)
4,231 11,984
st Total 15,285 22,393
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(a)

RZZE—ZTFHA=H"'&
ArEl—HHEEZEREA
AIERERBR AR ([E
) E2Famous Key Holdings
Limited ([Famous Key | -
—HREBEXESEM
K ZBRAA BHAR
AIMTTESREZE L
(TlRBL2E#HE)T
7 B F % bA[AFamous
Keylt 85 & #£2,239,873
fxMacarthur Minerals
Limited ([MMS )& 3 °
@ B - =B 75 B Minmetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(IMinmetals | » —ER &
BaEMKZ 2 BRAR)ET
YE—MMEEBZE AR
Minmetals{ #53,144,6540%
MMSH% {3 > MinmetalsE =
75 Wl 5 & B E AR R FFEH
TEF - EXLMHZE 2K
REGEGHE EBR_F
——F=ZA=1+HEBMH
Famous Key & MinmetalsZ£1T
AJ AR S 4% - LATH (E3.0500
Tt (185 124.3547%7T ) FERK
WeE 5,384,527 R MMSE& (7 ©
MMSE—BRMNEKRZ R
ZRIER ST L R—NA
A HEFEEBRRNEMNA
HMERAEAESZHTERE
S EEAME -

REBEE_ZT—tFK_F
—NEFERNAZ+THILEFE-
KBz EmRAEETE
ABTHK -E=ZRR BH

B WHRFRNESEREE
[E518620,0008 7T (= ZF—7~
£ : 457,000/ 7T) °

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade
Bloom"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous Key”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk
(“Dr. Chan”), an executive director of the Company, to
acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares of Macarthur
Minerals Limited (“MMS"”) from Famous Key. On the same
date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale and
purchase agreement with Minmetals Mining Corporation
Limited (“Minmetals”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, to acquire 3,144,654 shares
of MMS from Minmetals. Mr. Fang Gang, a director of
Minmetals, was previously a non-executive director of the
Company. Having satisfied the terms and conditions of the
aforesaid agreements, the acquisitions of the 5,384,527
shares of MMS were completed on 30 March 2011 at
the market price of Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to
HK$24.354) by the issue of convertible notes to Famous
Key and Minmetals. MMS is an Australian company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and its
principal activity is exploration and development of an area
with significant prospective iron-ore located in Western
Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market values of
listed equity investments in overseas during the year ended
30 June 2017 and 2016. The directors consider that such
a decline indicates that the listed equity investments have
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$620,000
(2016: HK$457,000) has been recognised in profit or loss
for the year.
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4 AIftHEZSREE  20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

(%) ASSETS (continued)
Hiet: (&) Notes: (continued)
© FE £ AR AN 18 & 2 K AN Rk (© The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less
EREREEER REER provision for impairment as they do not have quoted
BRI E I &N GRS market prices in an active market and the range of
WwE BATFEZEEME reasonable fair value estimates is so significant and the
HEREMHET 2R probability of the various estimates is significant. As at
BEER-R-_ZE—tF A 30 June 2017, an impairment loss of HK$7,753,000
=+ R REBEGHFRERRE (2016: Nil) has been made on the Group’s unlisted equity
mE  NEBIRKAFTTEZ investment measured at cost based on the estimated future
I ETARAIR & 8215 R E S cash flow.
187,753,000 7T (=T — 7~
FMm)o
—+— - REIBWIR 21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
HiaE Fi#&T FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
A R Promissory notes (a) 11,449 11,449
H {th = B e W FR IR Other long-term receivables (b) 700 700
12,149 12,149
B A Provision for impairment (12,149) (12,149)
REEWFIBREREREZEZ There was no movement on the provision for impairment of
T—+ERZT-RFRA=T long-term receivables during the years ended 30 June 2017
HIEFEI mE - and 2016.
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(o))

“+— - REIEWEIE (@)

(a)

R=ZFE—+t&FA=+H
211,449,000 7Tt (=&
— 755 11,449,000 7T) 2
L Z R - 7,828,000/ 7T
— T — X4 :7,828,000%8
L) BEEIF - A B RAERZ
T —F+A—BESTHE
4 38 - 2 £23,621,00075 7T
—F— N4 :3,621,000/8
T BEERT 28 KAH
—EE=F=-At+RHBEH
T=FEE-ENEREE
EEZE BERAEEEE
2R (E ©

R-ZFE—+FXA=1+8"
ZEBRE T EEEER
7),2700,0008 7T (= F—7x
i 700,000 ) R R E
CEZRIBARE BRI
25\3/\ ZT—+FERA=1+H
BR-ERNZEHREARZ
MERBRE BRAESE
EELE2ERE-

;‘

21.

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a) Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
June 2017 (2016: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2016:
HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable
by 15 annual instalments commencing on 1 October
2001. The remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2016:
HK$3,621,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
13 annual instalments commencing on 15 March 2003. In
view of default in repayment of the promissory notes, a full

impairment was made in prior years.

(b) As at 30 June 2017, the balance represents a shareholder’s
loan of HK$700,000 (2016: HK$700,000) advanced to
an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on 30 June 2017. In view of poor financial
performance of the investee company, a full impairment

was made in prior years.
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= BRBPYE 22. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2017 2016
Fi#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FURE SR Carrying amount at beginning
of the year 576,843 546,497
NE Additions 9,350 26,810
BEAREZ RITERFE Bank loan interest capitalised
(P3EE) (note 7) 1,527 3,536
HE Disposal (99,161) =
HE—RWERF Disposal of a subsidiary
(PEEm+3) (note 45) (488,559) -
FRE@EH Carrying amount at end of the year = 576,843
RZZE—RERA=TH K& As at 30 June 2016, the Group's property under
] AR TH < %8 /576,843,0007% JT development with a carrying amount of HK$576,843,000
ZERPYMEEHER  (EAR was pledged to secure a bank borrowing granted to the
SEEEFRRITEE 2 EF M (K Group (note 28).
FZ+) e
—t+=-FE 23. INVENTORIES
2017 2016
Fi#ET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JRA Raw materials 39,274 83,960
F B m Work in progress 3,614 4943
SIRK om Finished goods 127,049 132,896
169,937 221,799
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~+m - ESERIER

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 W GRIA Trade receivables 124,081 121,020
R FEWGRIRR B R Less: provision for impairment of
receivables (27,996) (27,789)
E S eI GRIE — F 5 Trade receivables — net 96,085 93,231

AEE-RZRITEEINEE

BEFZER BERRELEEF
HRERIRTEF ZEEERK-
BREFPUREESEER X
5 B HOREE B WK TR M 15 B,
RIEH - BmIREA R EEE

EHIER -

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.
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“+m - ESEWRIE @ 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

RERE B H - BRI B R R IR An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as

EERBHZE 5 EYGKIE 2 AR at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of
M - the sale, is as follows:

2017 2016

F#ET FAET

HK$°000 HK$'000

0-30H 0 - 30 days 32,546 30,544

31-60H 31 - 60 days 16,894 22,771

61-90H 61— 90 days 11,023 12,571

90H A Over 90 days 35,622 27,345

96,085 93,231

BRBTEE46.3FTH TEE N AR A Save as disclosed in note 46.3, there is no concentration of

SBEBERERFHHERSH credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group

MESHEWKGIEMS @ WEEH has a large number of customers which are internationally

EERR- dispersed.
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(@)

“4m - EZEWEIE @)

RifE B8 MRBERAEE
REBEZH B 28 5 RUGIR Bk

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

RoMan is as follows:
2017 2016
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
R HA I AR RV E Neither past due nor impaired 60,435 61,506
#HI0 - 308 0 - 30 days past due 10,003 15,775
#HA31 - 60H 31 - 60 days past due 5,870 7,656
@ Hl61 - 90H 61 — 90 days past due 3,249 3,777
#HI91 — 180H 91 - 180 days past due 15,206 4,354
# H8181 — 365 H 181 — 365 days past due 1,212 -
#1HA365H MA Over 365 days past due 110 163
96,085 93,231

BER BRI Y B 5 R
T B S AT R R
TREF -

BEABERNELE S EKA
WhZREAKEARFEKC
BZTRATEF REBELER
EEERE ARNEEERLE
EXEE BERDEIEI 2
W el - R B T 3 5k S A AR VR
BB AREAERH D A
BRBEZESRIFIRERFAE
MERREERLEMEER

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit
enhancements in respect of trade receivables that are past
due but not impaired.
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“+m - EZEWFE @) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

B SRR R E R IRE A B
fRERACER  BRIFAKE R /W
ZEDRUGRIAEZ MERE - £
HERT BEBREEEZAR
2 R IE M 3H - B 5 & WA

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

WEREZZEBHINT : impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
2017 2016
F#ET F#ET
HK$000 HK$'000
FHREER Balance at beginning of the year 27,789 28,546
EHRBERRE Impairment losses recognised 220 260
B0 2 R EEE Impairment losses reversed = (803)
PE W = RE Exchange difference (13) (214)
F R Balance at end of the year 27,996 27,789

REREEH AKE 2B 5
WK IR IR A ) Ko B2 78 B BE TE AL
18~ fERRIE 2 & 5 e YR IR S
FERSBENRZIEFS -

ARBEFERR NRSBEH-
IR —FARMKE 2 E 5 RS
AZAHEREEm BT EE
RER  FARZEERENER
LB

At each reporting date, the Group's trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of trade receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception at the reporting date.
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“+35 - UAFEEFANER 25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ZEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
F#E T FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

BELMRAZ S wmE Listed equity securities in

Hong Kong, at market value 5,770 4,222
FTRABESH 2 ATFELREER Fair value of the listed equity securities have been
s B EAE SRS 2 B determined by reference to their quoted market prices at the

RETE -

AR EABRZ SHEER
RARERERAKEEE—A
2NRLEESEH —Ho-

UATE AR S HAE
ATES B A BRI Z H A
BN -

R RERRESHE

RERREFRBREATKD

reporting date in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating income in
profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
2017 2016
FiET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e MIRITHER Cash and bank balances 374,648 45,632

RITRSRE BRITERFXER
HUZ BRI S -

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.
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A HERREER 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(&)

ARBEERR RITREZA
FEEEEANSRIEERNE
2 -AAEBRERREADIHE-

RZZE—tFA=ZF+H &
SEUNARBFEZRE R
SR1T7 45 #4249 514,694,0007% 7T
(ZZ2E—R"F BHe kRTHEH
10,442,000 7T) - B B KIET)
BFARBKERITZ FRBEF
BERIB ARBWIATHH LK
2B o AR 4 AR B K B SN 5
fpI R AEE SERGEEER
E AL E A RBEREETIN
PE 275 2 SRITIG A R K AN
qqg °

(continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of the cash at banks are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had cash and bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounting
to approximately HK$14,694,000 (2016: cash and bank
balance of HK$10,442,000), which were deposits with
banks in Mainland China or held in hand. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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“t+t - ESEMNRE

27. TRADE PAYABLES

2017 2016

Fi&T FHEIT

HK$°000 HK$'000

B Z e FIE Trade payables 58,703 126,705

BHRNRIBZ EEGRRERE
TR R 17 E 2 XM AR -
RBERH AEEREHZEA
H2 8B 5 RNFIRZ Rk DT 1A

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of
trade payables of the Group as at the reporting date, based
on the invoice dates, is as follows:

T
2017 2016
Fi#ET FETT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
0-30H 0 - 30 days 8,488 37,358
31 -60H 31 - 60 days 13,583 25,082
61 -90H 61 — 90 days 7,959 17,717
90H A Over 90 days 28,673 46,548
58,703 126,705

EoRNREBEHEE

th BEFERREZENFIE LR

HEEEENTERSE-

Trade payables are short term in nature and hence, the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables are
considered to approximate to their fair values.
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—+I/\ - SRITER 28. BANK LOANS
ROTERRASBE 2 AMAT The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
MENE R Current liabilities
HAR—FANEEZ Portion of loans from banks due for
RITERHH repayment within one year
—BER — Guaranteed 10,000 41,648
—BHEAREER — Secured and guaranteed 89,000 504,400
99,000 546,048
AR —FRERELEHAB Portion of loans from banks due for
RESERIE 2 repayment after one year
RITERHD which contain a repayable
on demand clause
—HER — Guaranteed 20,000 25,500
119,000 571,548
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Z+H\ RITER @ 28. BANK LOANS (continued)
RZE—tEFA=+8817 At 30 June 2017, the bank loans were scheduled to repay as
ENRCERRFRERET follows:

2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RITERK: Bank loans:
AR—FNEE Repayable within one year 99,000 546,048
BARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 20,000 4,500
ERE=ZEFRF Repayable in the third to
(RREEEMSF)EE fifth year, inclusive - 21,000
119,000 571,548
S EIAE R R LE The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
KA AEEXE B W RHEME dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
EREBEHRIGEX 22 - of any repayment on demand clause.
RZZE—tFA=1+RH K& At 30 June 2017, the Group's banking facilities were
B RITEERMER NIEBE secured/guaranteed by the followings:
IR
@ =&K& R E E & (a) legal charges over the Group’s investment
37,800,000/ T 2 & & property with carrying values of approximately
MEZEEMRT (K& HK$37,800,000 (note 16);
RAVE
by =X® & ik E B 4 (b)  legal charges over the Group's leasehold land and
12,131,000 72 HE T buildings with carrying values of approximately
R BT 2 EEMT (K HK$12,131,000 (note 14);
)



Annual Report 2017 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+FRA=THILFE

—+I)\ - RITER @ 28. BANK LOANS (continued)

RZE—LtFA=1+H &&E
BRITEERERTHIERE
W R (E)

At 30 June 2017, the Group’s banking facilities were

secured/guaranteed by the followings: (continued)

(0 i B mE Y (© legal charges over the Group's land use rights with
1,305,000/ 7T 2 + #i carrying values of approximately HK$1,305,000
BAREZEERT (KT (note 15); and
+H) &

(d) K A B ¥ ¥ 2 (d) corporate guarantees of HK$444,503,000 executed
444,503,000 7T A A & by the Company.
Ko

RZZT—ARFAA=1+RH K& At 30 June 2016, the Group's banking facilities were

lZ%Efﬂ* EmER NIEEE
B ER

secured/guaranteed by the followings:

@ =&K& B E B 4 (a) legal charges over the Group's investment
472,930,000/ 7T 2 &% & property with carrying values of approximately
W 2 ORTE M (MY a2 HK$472,930,000 (note 16);
+7%)

by =& & Bk H E A (b)  legal charges over the Group's property under
576,843,000/ 7T Z & E development with carrying values of approximately
i ZEE A (Gt HK$576,843,000 (note 22);
—t+=):

© HEEREWE(ME

assignment of rental and sales proceeds over the

+78) KB R o (Bt investment property (note 16) and property under
E= Jr:) ZHEERHE development (note 22);
FT8 508

@ =x®& R E B 4 (d)  legal charges over the Group's leasehold land and
14,136,000/ 72 HE + buildings with carrying values of approximately
R8T 2 AR (M HK$14,136,000 (note 14);

W)

(e) i B mE Y (e) legal charges over the Group's land use rights with
1,341,000/ JT 2 &= #h {F carrying values of approximately HK$1,341,000
A%z EE R (M (note 15);
+TH):
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]

—+I)\ - SRITER @) 28.

R-ZFB—RERNA=TH A&
BZRITEERMER THIEBE
BRER: (F)

(f) X A A\ B N 2
695,028,000/ 7T A & &
R &

(9) AAal—HEEEENB
NG 3

REENABTFEZRITER
119,000,000 7T (=& — 7~
F : 571,548,000/ 7T ) 2 F B F
RN F1.43%E2.84% (==
—NF 1 1.22%%E3.23% ) °

Zt+h - MERAERIE 29.

$’§l7%,ﬁ\IEﬁi‘“ BEBHEEN
BE-R-_F—+FRH=TH"
*Eﬁvaﬂéfa‘ﬂiézikxﬁﬂﬁﬂiéﬁ
RAAEREBRENT

BANK LOANS (continued)

At 30 June 2016, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured/guaranteed by the followings: (continued)

) corporate guarantees of HK$695,028,000 executed
by the Company; and

(9 ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
HK$119,000,000 (2016: HK$571,548,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 1.43% to 2.84% (2016: 1.22%
to 3.23%) per annum.

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group leases motor vehicles for its normal operating
business. As at 30 June 2017, the total future minimum
lease payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:

2017 2016
=IRHEE =IkHEE REHE REHE
R E gt MR E ez

Present Present

value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

FET FE#T THT TAT
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 377 399 379 a1
—FRERFEA After one year but within two years 314 323 691 722
691 722 1,070 1,143
R RA B R % B E Less: Total future interest expenses = 31) = 73)
HEFKRE Present value of lease obligations 691 691 1,070 1,070
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30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

2017 2016
FH#E T FET
HK$000 HK$'000
mENEE Current liabilities
JERTRA:E AR ZIE (MizE@))  Due to related companies (note (a)) 576 2,744
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
JESTRA:E A RIZTE (MiFE(b))  Due to related companies (note (b)) 82,036 165,346

(@)

R=F—+FX~A=1+8"
JENBREAREMENZ
SERAR ([EH] BRI
THAEFEEEAR)NE
576,000/ T A EHIF - £ 5
ER=ZF—+tF+tA=+=
HE|HR(EE -

R=F—XRE~A=1+8"
FE1ST A& A Rl5KIE2,744,000
BEThAEEEREE H
FEMEMNTEHREE R
ABERAR([MEH] FRE
THAEFEEEAR)FE
1,751,000 TR =Z —+
FRAZFT/BEHEE.
F& <1 & 8 5k 78,584,000 7T
RZE—R"FLtA=-+=AH
| HA(E R R E DI PR E SR
BEHEZRRER AR ([F
E| o BRELHEE)RE
409,000 LR =Z—+F MW
A=-+—BEZHEE-

Notes:

As at 30 June 2017, the amount due to E/NEHEHH
[RA&E] (“A$A"), a related company, which Dr. Chan is a
key management personnel, of HK$576,000 is unsecured,
interest-free and due for repayment on 22 July 2017.

As at 30 June 2016, the amounts due to related companies
of HK$2,744,000 were unsecured and interest-free, of
which an amount due to BE/MNMIEHRFEEFBABRA
&) (“B%"), which Dr. Chan was a key management
personnel, of HK$1,751,000 was due for repayment on 26
May 2017, an amount of due to & # of HK$584,000 was
due for repayment on 22 July 2016 and an amount due
to IFIHERRFEEZERARAR ("EE"), which
was owned by Dr. Chan, of HK$409,000 was due for
repayment on 21 April 2017.

O
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=+ BHREARNKIEA

(&)

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

Bz (&) Notes: (continued)

(b)

R-_ZE—XR"EXA—B &
BRAREHRE—FELASEA
R #27,250,0007T (A& %
31,814,000/ ) 2 fEH 2
FERERE—_T—NFH
A=+—R-ZfFHBEZA
T R E TE 2 B SRR AN P
ZERBEBHN T —NEN
A—BHBEEREE KRS
2,222,000/t Ll &5 >
BEEEEREEBEREE=
E—RNFEANA=THILFEE
EREANER  EEHRK
18 7 BR T & %828,734,0007%5
70 (=ZZF—7<4 : 27,788,000
BL) AEEE 2B ER
—_ZE-—hAFRA=+—H
(ZBE—REF: 2T —NF
AA=+—B)EHESE"
MEEESBERATESF
MELT75% (ZF—KF:
475% )FtE -

R-ZZTE—XRENA—8"
B8 /A AlFamous Keyi —%&
R B A B U EMMSE (5
(MM =+ (a)FFu) 2 7
BREEMELEZASTE
58,170,000/ Jt & 8 2 &
BiEE_—_ZET—hE=A
=+ H-BEBEBEZAF
BEEREEZ#BHER AR
EHBYR_ZT—RFX
A—BEBREBEE K
7,632,000/ Ll o 5B 2
B EE WS E &R EZ R
BARHERE MzEE
A B AR I R R &
BIEH - ARRMITEEMR
BEhAZBE AR ZER
A A o EfFFamous Keyzk
T8 7 BR T & %851,171,00078
7t (ZZF—75%F : 47,558,000
BIT) BERE BB KR
- NAE=A=+—H
ZE—RF:ZT-NF
ZA=+—H)3HES"

mMEEEEBNEAMSF
FE734% (=T —~F:
7.34% )t & -

(b)

On 1 June 2016, a related company, 1E%, renewed the
maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount of
RMB27,250,000 (equivalent to HK$31,814,000) to 31
May 2019. Gain on debt extinguishment of HK$2,222,000
was resulted from the difference between the fair value
of the renewed debt and amortised costs of the original
debt on 1 June 2016. The gain on debt extinguishment
of the said amount was then recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2016. The carrying amount
of the amount due to 8% of HK$28,734,000 (2016:
HK$27,788,000) is unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 May 2019 (2016: 31 May 2019). Its
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 4.75% (2016: 4.75%) per annum.

On 1 June 2016, Famous Key, a related company, renewed
the maturity date of the debt due of the principal amount
of HK$58,170,000 to 31 March 2019, which was
originally arisen from a convertible note in connection
to the acquisition of shares of MMS as detailed in note
20(a). Gain on debt extinguishment of HK$7,632,000
was resulted from the difference between fair value of the
renewed debt and amortised costs of the original debt on
1 June 2016. The gain on debt extinguishment of the said
amount was then treated as a deemed capital contribution
from the related company, which was ultimately held
by Dr. Chan, the controlling shareholder. Dr. Chan, an
executive director of the Company, was also a beneficial
owner of this related company. The carrying amount of
the amount due to Famous Key of HK$51,171,000 (2016:
HK$47,558,000) is unsecured, interest-free and due for
repayment on 31 March 2019 (2016: 31 March 2019). Its
carrying amount was calculated using a market interest rate
of 7.34% (2016: 7.34%) per annum.
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=+ - BAREXARE
(%)

Hizt: (&)
b (&)

RZZE—+tFA=1+8"
JE 15 B 3 A Rl B ¥R ROE &
ZHREZEREED R
1,728,000/ Jt }403,0007%
TLRERE 22 KD RIN
—ET-AFRA=+BK
—T-hAFMA=+—HE

HA(ER

RZE-RFEFARNA=T
B EfE#EERA KA
ZBRE S I EEERN
Propway Limited ( B A2
AIPTESFS R EH
5 ) 5 1830,000,0007% 70 &
60,000,000/ T ° 3% & FE 15
TIE R - 5 Rl & A
K2 1% K2.4%5t B &5 Al
RZZE—tFEA=THK
—E—t+FNA=1THEIH
BE - ZERBEREES
T—tFRNA=ZTHIEFE

BIE -

=t+—TEEMIER

30. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

(b) (continued)

As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of amounts due
to related companies, 184 and &, of HK$1,728,000
and HK$403,000 are unsecured, interest-free and due
for repayment on 26 May 2019 and 21 April 2019,
respectively.

As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of the amounts
due to related companies also included the amounts due
to Propway Limited, which was wholly-owned by Cheng
Siu Yin, Shirley, an executive director of the Company, of
HK$30,000,000 and HK$60,000,000. These amounts due
were unsecured, interest-bearing at 2.1% and 2.4% per
annum and due for repayment on 30 July 2017 and 30
September 2017, respectively. These amounts were settled
during the year ended 30 June 2017.

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS
2017 2016
& & BE B
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FHET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
REEEAY Forward currency contracts - (143) 99 -

RoB R AEAA
=R EREEEANNESEH
8 R—ENBE-

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the forward currency
contracts were denominated in British Pounds and maturity
was less than one year.

N
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=+= - MHEFRERE

32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

2017 2016
Fi&T FEIT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
mEARE Current liabilities

—BEREE — Financial guarantee liabilities 7,216 3,411

ERBERE Non-current liabilities
—BEREE — Financial guarantee liabilities 9,921 2,245
17,137 5,656

RZE—=—F+—HANB =
Z—MOMFEF+A=+HEZ=ZZ
—A~NE=ZA+—H X287
—MRIT AR AT L HE
REEER —HMAELEZ
2EWB AR ASRED
Bl A A R #470,000,0007T (4
£ #49582,800,0005 7T )
AR #200,000,0007T (185
M #J252,800,00055 70) M A R
#110,000,0007C (&R 4
132,000,000/ 70 ) 2 RITIE E
BEREIM B ERE L - ERE
M Ei iR TE IR A BB AT D
FERXAPRF = FRAF-
ZERGBRARBZATHE
BRETERS BEE—THB
REBBAEZT——F+—AN
B —Z2—NFE+A=+HEZ
T—ARF=A+—BZRAERAE

==
2 ©

On 8 November 2012, 30 October 2014, 11 March
2016, the Company entered into agreements in favour
of a bank in relation to the provision of a financial
guarantee contract of a banking facility in a principal
amount of RMB470,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$582,800,000), RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$252,800,000) and RMB110,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$132,000,000) respectively
entered by a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint venture.
The guarantee period lasts for a total of five years, three
years and five years respectively from the date of grant of
the aforesaid bank loans. These transactions constituted
discloseable and major transactions of the Company and
further details were disclosed in the announcements dated 8
November 2012, 30 October 2014 and 11 March 2016.
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=+= - IBEREE @ 32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

RZZ—R"FENLANA ARQH
A—FRIT B AT — D1
HAREE—HAeELEZ
2EMBARFMEILASEAA
[ #773,300,0007T (FHER 4
897,000,000 7T ) 2 IRITIEE
BEREMBERE L - ERE
HRTEREENAH=-Z
—NF+—A+ A BEFEER
H=F -ZBERSHBEARNE]—
HATHBERETERS B@#
—SHBERBBRAE=Z—FN
ANBZRAER=-Z—~<Ft+A
—BZBHANHE -

L —HEeELE¥EZE
BB AREEERMKE TR
TZBMBER ARARE &
BREREANBELEABBEZATF
BE# AR ¥9,879,0007T (#H %
12,405,000 7T) * AR ¥
1,436,0007T (4855 51,816,000
BL) > AR®1,360,0007T
(HEZ771,622,0008 ) & A
R #18,600,0007 (0% 1
21,647,000/ 7T ) - BNAR VE % —
MeEErELRE (MHE+N) -
ABRERNEGERE 2 2 RE
©F R B ELRAD
BRRAERNERAVIBERE
BE-RIRITTERIR L B H%E Bt
BREREESEEARITERE
REANBHEZEA -

(continued)

On 9 September 2016, the Company, entered into an
agreement in favour of a bank in relation to the provision
of a financial guarantee contract of a banking facility
in principal amount of RMB773,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$897,000,000) entered by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of a joint venture. The guarantee
period lasts for a total of three years from the date of
first drawdown of the bank loan on 16 November 2016.
This transaction constituted a discloseable transaction and
major transaction of the Company and further details
were disclosed in the announcement and circular dated 9
September 2016 and 3 October 2016 respectively.

In relation to the aforesaid financial guarantees granted to
a bank over the repayment of a loan by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of a joint venture, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts at the dates of grant of approximately
RMB9,879,000 (equivalent to HK$12,405,000),
RMB1,436,000 (equivalent to HK$1,816,000),
RMB1,360,000 (equivalent to HK$1,622,000) and
RMB18,600,000 (equivalent to HK$21,647,000)
representing a deemed capital contribution to a joint
venture (note 19), had been adjusted to the carrying
amount of the interests in joint ventures and simultaneously,
the said amount was recognised as financial guarantee
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Subsequent to the grant dates of the bank loans, the
financial guarantee liabilities were amortised to income over
the respective bank loan guarantee periods.

N
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H

RZE—AR"FNANBRIZH
BERENE ARRERRZ
MR- ZE——F+—HAN\A8-
—E—NFt+A=ZtHE=-F
—NEFE=ZR+— B2
REHNZHMEET-EHiIL - B
PERABZEEASEAL
4,377,000/ 0 B 42X LIERERR - W
HE_ZT—+FA=1THILF

(continued)

Upon entering the financial guarantee contract on 9
September 2016, the Company was released from all
the previous financial guarantee contracts entered on 8
November 2012, 30 October 2014 and 11 March 2016.
Accordingly, the respective carrying amounts of the financial
guarantee liabilities totalling HK$4,377,000 have been
derecognised and recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 30 June 2017.

B2 BRRNER -
=+= - BERBEREREZE 33. LOAN FROM A CONTROLLING
EN SHAREHOLDER
2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
nEaE Current liabilities
TRE KRR 2 B Loan from a controller shareholder
(FizEG@@)) (note (a)) 4,606 =
EREaE Non-current liabilities
ZRRAR SRR it 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder
(KI5E(b) ) (note (b)) - 131,670

(a) RZE—+tF A=+
H-BREBELIBN-—2AR
#4,000,0007T (4% %
4,606,000 7T) Z B 7%
BERAEER 2ERRZ
Z—t+FE+A=-+HBRH

-

(b) R-E—A"FANA=1+H8"
PRiE -2 —%8127,000,000
BLZER ZEREBE
R R F A E1.5%5
& H 190,000,000/ 7T &
37,000,000 T/ IR ==
—+FENA=+ER_-Z
—tF+AABEHES-
5 —% AR #4,000,0007C
(#8%124,670,000/ 7T) Z
BEFRNERELRN ZE
REBERE RERR=ZF

—+E+ A=+ A A EEE

o

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2017, loan of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,606,000) is advanced from Dr. Chan and is
unsecured, interest-free and due for repayment on 25
October 2017.

As at 30 June 2016, loan of HK$127,000,000 was
advanced from Dr. Chan and was unsecured, interest-
bearing at 1.5% per annum, of which amounts of
HK$90,000,000 was due for repayment on 30 September
2017 and an amount of HK$37,000,000 was due
for repayment on 5 October 2017. Another loan of
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to HK$4,670,000) was also
advanced from Dr. Chan and was unsecured, interest-free
and due for repayment on 25 October 2017.
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=4m - %ﬁg#ﬂﬁ (BE) 34. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
=

ITARREBHERAZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
ELERIE(EE) /B8FE UK recognised at the reporting date and the movements during
RAFERBAFEZEH: the current and prior years:
WE KB
R
TifE R
NRREEZ IEHRE e IE
ATERE e B st
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment,
land use  Accelerated
rights and tax  Provision for
mining right  depreciation  receivables Total
FET FHET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R-E—AELE—B2&H Balance at 1luly 2015 169,862 (169) (5,763) 163,930
R Exchange realignment (13,103) = = (13,103)
WERER (B%)/ MK (Credited)/Debited to
profit or loss for the year (9,104) (21) 254 (8,871)
RZF—REAA=+HE Balance at 30 June 2016
“B-AELA-AZ&B  and 1luly 2016 147,655 (190) (5,500) 141,956
B X R Exchange realignment (2,013) - - (2,013)
RERBRE R Credited to profit or loss for the year (573) = = (573)
R-F-t£~A=1+H Balance at 30 June 2017
ZH8 145,069 (190) (5.509) 139,370

N
o
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N
(@)}

afg @

TIRBEZEHRET 2 EER
REMBIRAR AR

(continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

2017 2016

FETT FEIT

HKS$'000 HK$'000

BT IR B & Deferred tax liabilities 145,132 147,718
EIERIBE E Deferred tax assets (5,762) (5,762)
139,370 141,956

AREBHXEHRBERED
178,760,000 ¢ ( =& — /X
F : 166,140,000/ 7T ) ' ;2 S5t
BEBTAREHEEZER
B8 2 A A2 R PR FE R &=
F o EERAT K AT B AR SR FEER T
R ABRZERDAHIEE
B BARI R ZEEEERE
ERBBEE - AEHAHEEIE
74,808,000/ 7T (= F — /N ¢
74,966,000 7T ) I REE =T
ZZF(ZE—RF 2R
F) (PEZF)2TRAEE
B o Hth 7R B) A 154 T /&5 18 AT 4B R

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$ 178,760,000
(2016: HK$166,140,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$74,808,000 (2016: HK$74,966,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2022 (2016: 2021). Other
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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=+F - BAF 35. SHARE CAPITAL
BETEBERARERN 2 EEn The movements in the issued ordinary share capital during
e the year are as follows:
2017 2016
LERHE FET LRkEE FAT
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares HKS'000 shares HKS 000
BETRER: Issued and fully paid:
RENRER At beginning and end of the year 6,831,182,580 560,673  6,831,182,580 560,673
=+ s 36. RESERVES

AEE Group
RNEE 2 RN FERBEFERE The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
REBEB s 2R THREERE therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
BERZE5 - consolidated statement of changes in equity.
R e Y N NI = o Other reserve represents the difference between the
%ﬁ?’iﬁﬁi‘iﬁZﬁfﬁéﬁiﬁ’\ﬂﬁlﬁ%?Hﬁ consideration paid for the additional interest in the
Hil#E s 2 BRGSO R subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest's share of the
TIEFE %UTZFE\ Bl EEHRBE assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
L ERE of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the

non-controlling interests.

N
o
~
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PARS RS BT

—_ L 2 - ;
=+ f#E #) 36. RESERVES (continued)
FIN/NE| Company
BhE FARiR
1 1 TERE R B F @zt
Share Non- Capital
option distributable  contribution Retained
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FiET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
RIZ-RFtA-BzE&# Balance at 1 July 2015 1,879 273,606 14,604 201,822 491911
—FABERRRSLHE 2 Deemed capital contribution arising
BELRBEEBMESLL from debt extinguishment from
RIELE (M=) a related company ultimately
held by a controlling shareholder
(note 30(b)) - - 7,632 - 7,632
RN D AEE 2 R Recognition of share-based
(WE=++) compensation (note 37) 2,390 - = = 2,390
HEFAZRS Transaction with owners 2,390 = 7,632 = 10,022
FREF Profit for the year - - - 7,121 7,121
FREENEESE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 7121 7121
RIZ-"EXAZTER Balance at 30 June 2016 and
ZE-AFLA-HZER 1 July 2016 4,269 273,606 22,236 208,943 509,054
RIARD RER 2 R Recognition of share-based
(WEF=++) compensation (note 37) 2,140 = = = 2,140
HEBEAZRS Transaction with owners 2,140 = = = 2,140
FRHH Profit for the year - - - 736,336 736,336
FAZENEAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 736,336 736,336
RIF—tERNAZ+AZER Balance at 30 June 2017 6,409 273,606 22,236 945,279 1,247,530

TR DR GEE AR — L LU E
NA R 2 AR E B &&2.50
EITTHIRE0.10/8 TR E A 2 i

B

N
)
(05

Non-distributable reserve represents the premium arising

on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares of the
Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in 1994.
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=1+t - EBRRERE 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Anwz Bt 8 ([&at
2R -_ZE2-—ZFLA+=H
BEARRNBIBCRILE - %5t8I2 A
MR TE-

EXgURBREGEMNIIEE
T%A:t%f E%HX*EJ’/\WL, Eﬁzﬁl\\
Bt

(i) ARAE - AERIARR BB
DAL E T 2
mEE (BmEEBERE
B) S&THRAERE
EOKRE - EF(EHEH
17 FERIT SB IETT
ER)HER MKREFD

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the

ey %TZIKEIZi‘E Group; or
NMERELHER (RES
IRTE) K

(ii) EREIEE T (i) any investee.

RBEEZVARUT Z&EE
()RR RN PR S A2 15 th R R
BH(BEREXB)EBRPT
FRMEBERABHHE B
ARARRONERZZR OB
BEH A EEXBEBRRAE
BREXRMB 2 FHRTE -

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the option.

N
O
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=+t - BRER#EE @) 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

N
(=)

AEBATWEREZIE T B
B EE A NEREIAE
RHEEZE ML EER &
BABRAARBZHETIES
BRHRE A TERBZT S
2 2 EEREMET RN B
HIAERBORMERARAFTE
BEITRRD 210%  BR(i)ARRA AN
B B3 TIRAN 230% ° BRIEER
NEIRRARRRAE EHE B
RIRAEM 1218 A B3R - TR
TER2HE ZERE (BER
T8 R i R AT 58 2 s AR A ) Pp 3%
TR TBIT 2R RN B2
TMEEBBAR R EREZHITRA
21% °

BREMRERESTENRAE
EERIER NS S ARA - %
HREAGERZZE L A HH
B AT GBEEERRLAH
HEEr+F2BH-

R_E—MFEA_+HH K
RAREBZAEME —RESK
t£110,000,00017 & A& # - 1T B
BER0I21B L - BER T H
BART 2 W AR (B &0.120/%8 7T

RZZE—RF+EA+EH AQF
BEZFEMEETEERN
40,000,00017 & Ax 4 - 1T (B /&
HFR%0.2458 L R E R H B H
A 2 Y1 3% {8 A0.20078 7T ©

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (i) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date.

On 25 July 2014, the Company granted 10,000,000 options
to one of its directors, with exercise price of HK$0.121
per share under the Scheme. The closing share price
immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.120.

On 7 July 2015, the Company granted 40,000,000 options
to certain of its directors, with exercise price of HK$0.245
per share under the Scheme. The closing share price
immediately preceding the date of grant was HK$0.200.



Annual Report 2017 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+FRA=THILFE

— - e .
=+t - BREFE @ 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RZZE—RF+—A=ZH AR On 3 November 2016, the Company granted 40,000,000
AR EZrEmEETESER options to certain of its directors, with exercise price
40,000,00017 B& I - 1TE(E & of HK$0.149 per share under the Scheme. The closing
FR0.1498 L - B R H A H share price immediately preceding the date of grant was
Al 2 Wi IR {E 014578 7T HK$0.145.
REBEEZZE—tFR-F—A~F Details of the outstanding share options under the Scheme
NA=ZTHLEFE %l TH held by the directors of the Company during the years
RABESFHFE L HATTEER ended 30 June 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
2 FHBWT
EREE
Number of share options

L=

REARS RHASH (iyid:d fiE® i:20) EREH ERTE REF
Exercise At the Granted Exercised Atthe

price beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period per share of the year the year the year the year

T

HKS
2017
REn “E-REAATAA “E3-MEARTNREZZZMERATN 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
i Z2-mERATAE ZI-MERRTAREZE-MEAATNA 0138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
AR e o il “E-NELA-TRERE-E-MELACTRA 0.121 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024
REH “T-REEALA “E-RELALAECECRELAAA 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kel,Vicki 7 uly 2015 7 July 2015 t0 6 July 2025
REy “3-R%tAtA “3-REtAtRECSCRELANA 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 7 uly 2015 to 6 July 2025
i5:31 “T-REEALA “E-RELALAECECRELAAA 0245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 7 uly 2015 7 July 2015 t0 6 July 2025

N
-
—
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=+t BRERE @ 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
BRESE
Number of share options

BR

REARR RiHAH (hid friEfE 2] EniY EnfTfE REX
Exercise At the Granted Exercised Atthe

price beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period per share of the year the year the year the year

-7

HKS
2017
AR “F-RFtAtA “E-hEtRtREZECRELANA 0.245 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7luly 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
REH “F-N¥1-R=H “3-nNET-A=REZZZE1-AZR 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
REL I R ZE-RET-AZRECRCAET-ACH 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
fHER ZF-N¥t-R=H Z3-nNET-A=REZZ=5E1-AZR 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026
BER “E2-RE+-A=R ZE-RET-AZRECRoAET-ACH 0.149 - 10,000,000 - 10000000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 3 November 2016 3 November 2016 to 2 November 2026

70,000,000 40,000,000 = 110,000,000
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=+t - BIREFE @ 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
ERESE
Number of share options
B
ESIN 2 RHRH T8 fife@ RE) ERRL R RER
Exercise Atthe Granted Exercised Atthe
price beginning during during end of
Name of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period per share of the year the year the year the year
AT
S
2016
R Z2-RERATAR ZE3-MEAATARZZEZREAATAR 0138 10,000,000 - - 10000000
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
= “E-mERATAA ZE3-MEARTNREZZZMERATN 0.138 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 19 June 2014 19 June 2014 to 18 June 2024
BER ZE-MELAZTHA “E-MEtA-tRAZ-E-MELA-TEA 0121 10,000,000 = - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 25 July 2014 25 July 2014 to 24 July 2024
REn “Z-REtALA “E-REtRtREZECRELARA 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Ke, Vicki 7 July 2015 7 uly 2015 to 6 July 2025
REY ZE-RELALR “E-RFtAtAZCECRECANA 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
ek “Z-REtALA “E-REtRtREZECRELARA 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Yam Tat Wing 7 July 2015 7 uly 2015 to 6 July 2025
BER ZE-RELALR “E-RFtAtAZCECRECANA 0.245 = 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Wong Edward Gwon-hing 7 July 2015 7 July 2015 to 6 July 2025
30,000,000 40,000,000 - 70,000,000
I AT (e B AR A > A 97T Weighted average exercise price of outstanding share
EA01798 T (& — K& options is HK$0.179 (2016: HK$0.197) and the weighted
0.1977T) » % 7 77155 B e average remaining contractual life of outstanding share
7 INAE Y s A 4 FEHRL) A8 options is approximately 8 years (2016: 9 years).

F(ZF—AF:95F)-

N
e
W
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N
D

=+t  BR#EFE @ 37.

TR BB B XA EMFIE
T(ZT—NF:FIBET)(ERE
Bz -_BHEEERAZEEH
ANE ARFERBE=Z—L
FRZF—RFANA=THILTF
EREZEREZATEE:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table lists the key inputs to the Binomial
Option Pricing Model, which is valued by LCH (2016: LCH),
an independent professional valuer, used for calculating

the fair value of the share options granted during the years
ended 30 June 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
i A A Date of grant —E—RE —ET—RHEF
+—HA=H +AtH
3 November 7 July 2015

2016
A% Share price HK$0.1497& 5t  HK$0.2457%5 7T
1I{EfE Exercise price HK$0.149 T  HK$0.2457%8 T
fasrRE (MizE@)) Expected volatility (note (a)) 68.00% 64.00%
FERRAE 2 TRET S A Expected life of the share options 104E years 105 years

(FEE(D)) (note (b))

# [2 B A1 2 (B RE(0) Risk-free rate (note (c)) 1.010% 1.870%

BATLE R
Wit :

(@) BRI RSN B ER
H B #AT+F AR R
W B 2 JER SRR ©

(b) FERUE 2 TR A A TART
TR R RS 2 B
B -

© EERA X GEEREE
SNER 2 EH 2 B s

=

Expected dividend yield

Notes:

(a)

Expected volatility: being the approximate historical
volatility of closing prices of the shares of the Company in
the past 10 years immediately before the date of grant.

Expected life of the share options: being the effective life of
the share options estimated from the expected exercising
time frame.

Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note.
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=1+t - BRiR#ERE @ 37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

#%40,000,00010 BB #E (==
— 7N £ £ 40,000,00017 B8 A% 4% )
W% B ERENRS 538 - M A BR
7 B 2 #6 B8 R B2, 140,000
It (ZF — 754 £ 2,390,000
BTIERBE-_T—+EXA
ZTHALFEEBEANER Z
EHBITHRRERR 2 RGN A
Bz mMAX SEERIBER
BR HESED T ABRER
o B AR L E AR D B
AR HHR G WA EERE

f&e

The 40,000,000 share options (2016: 40,000,000 share
options) vested immediately on the grant date and the
respective share-based compensation of HK$2,140,000
(2016: HK$2,390,000) was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2017. Such amount of
share-based compensation expenses in relation to the issue
of the share option had been recognised in profit or loss
and the corresponding amount of which had been credited
to the share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as
these are equity settled share-based payment transactions.

=)\ AR ZEBHRR 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
* OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
Kzt Fi# T FET
Notes HK$000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets
LSNP Interests in subsidiaries 1,186,562 1,173,655
A /NI - e Interests in associates = =
N NN - ey Interests in joint ventures 37,489 15,842
= B FE 5K TR Long-term receivables = =
1,224,051 1,189,497
REEE Current assets
TERNFIE - Ze & Prepayments, deposits and
E b pE U FRIR other receivables 271 271
N NGRS Due from subsidiaries 641,462 250,213
RERRESEHE Cash and cash equivalents 43,257 122
684,990 250,606

N
ul
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=1+/\ > KRR ZEAFEARR 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=R (&) OF THE COMPANY (continued)
2017 2016
Kt F# T FET
Notes HK$000 HK$000
REAE Current liabilities
HMEMRIBLETER  Other payables and accruals (4,694) (4,891)
FEASHB B A R FIE Due to subsidiaries (27,511) (94,946)
P EREE Financial guarantee liabilities (7,216) (3,411)
RIS Provision for tax (325) (325)
(39,746) (103,573)
REBEEFE Net current assets 645,244 147,033
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
Rl NGIE O] Due to related companies (51,171) (137,558)
PERRER IR 2 BN Loan from a controlling
shareholder - (127,000)
HEEREE Financial guarantee liabilities (9,921) (2,245)
(61,092) (266,803)
BEFE Net assets 1,808,203 1,069,727
WEZE EQUITY
[N Share capital 35 560,673 560,673
Gl Reserves 36 1,247,530 509,054
SR Total equity 1,808,203 1,069,727
REREZR On behalf of the Directors
R 1% 3L Chan Wai Lap, Victor
EZE Director
PREZZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
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SRS

=th - WBRA 39. SUBSIDIARIES
RZZE—tFA=1+H FZ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2017
MEBARZFBWNT: are as follows:
ML/ R EHRRR/ YN
7R gk BETRAFE EIESER I IBEH
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of paid-up Percentage of
registration registered/issued equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
Ef B
Direct Indirect
BEAMHERAR &R LRR0ET 100 - EEEB(-R-RF
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 ERESRITE)
Inactive
(2016: Diamond trading
and polishing)
Brangredi Limited BB LTRRIBT - 100 HEEHZS
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limited* EL 10005 ERAEIEE L EBK - 100 REEMHE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 each Jewellery wholesaling
BNERERAR &R L@R100%ET - 100 #RE5
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 Diamond trading
Continental Investment Company Limited & 7& L iE100,000% T 100 - REER
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100,000 Investment holding
BRGE (1) ARAA B B R735,000,000% T - 100 HEEHEE
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
BNREEHEERAT &R L#§10,000,0007% T 100 - REAHRERNEE
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
and wholesaling
BRERRAR B LakyET - 100 MERE
Continental Property Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$2 Property investment
Continental Universe Limited RERLHES WrEREEIET L EBR 100 - RERR
British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
DCGS Management Service Limited ab T2 10,000,0005 7T - 100 B/ REERRE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000,000 Investment holding/
providing management
services
BEREARAA &R L1R500,00078 T 100 - REBR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$500,000 Investment holding
Golden Creation Jewellery Limited B 381,000,005 T - 100 HEEHZS
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1,000,005 (ZB—7F: Jewellery trading
80%)

(2016: 80%)

N
-
~
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

-

BRELAT - ABRESE
CEEE

FRBBLEESETAE
BRARARRIEERZ
HMKE RAREZ - FFAT
EREERZIMNBAREE
FEABHASEEEFE
BEAKI2% °

ML/ MR BHERM/ NG|
&8 gy BRITRARE EHEZED I IEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of paid-up Percentage of
registration registered/issued equity attributable
Name and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
B 3
Direct Indirect
REEABERARA &t #0%6,000,0007% 7T 100 - REER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Factory Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$6,000,000 Investment holding
AENABEERAR TN B RRA21,000,000% T - 100 FARROREERRE
Mainland China Paid up capital of US$21,000,000 Mining and exploration
of mineral reserves
REER (BM)ARAR! HEARE BARARZA11,000,000% 70 - 00 EEXH(ZZ-RF:
Mainland China Paid up capital of HK$11,000,000 ERESRITE)
Inactive
(2016: Diamond trading
and polishing)
IHmEIHRERRAR" HEARE B AR BRA AR 18,605,040 - 100 HKEEHEE
Mainland China (ZF—7%: AR%15,561,390 Jewellery retalling
)
Paid up capital of RMB18,605,040
(2016: RMB15,561,390)
Patford Company Limited B LimiR10,00087T - 100 MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Realford Company Limited B LimiR10,00087T - 100 MERE
Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$10,000 Property investment
Yett Holdings Limited EBRANEHE 100 EREEIFT LRk 100 - RARR
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Master Gold Development Limited RKBRLHE 1REEIETZERR - 100 REER
British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
R BEAEZMZ I EEE # Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the

Mainland China.

Limited liability company — joint venture between domestic
investors and Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau investors.

* Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.
The aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited
by BDO amounted to approximately 2% of the Group's
total net assets.
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=+ - WBAR @) 39. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EERA ERAIAREIMNE
RAElEFEZEFRNERIAKR
SEEEFEZBRADBD EF
_275'5 IREEMMMB AR ZFE
BHERERBNRITE-

R-F—tFER_F—AFKH
=1TB WEBARGEEITEMN
BEfES -

M+ - SR &R

RBEHR  HEPBERET R
TREEBIXRAELT:

40.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At end of the reporting periods, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000

RE—HEeEhE Guarantees given to banks in

BERITEERE connection with banking

i A R 1T 1E i 2 FE IR facilities granted to joint venture 412,763 433,769
RZZT—tF A A=1+H K& As at 30 June 2017, the banking facilities granted to the
EAe S b ERBITIEL R joint venture subject to guarantees given to the bank by
FEatEERZRITEERE the Group was utilised to the extent of approximately of
B &) A 4412,763,000% 7T (= HK$412,763,000 (2016: HK$433,769,000). Under the
T — 74 1 433,769,000 7T ) © guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the banks if

RIBARER - fWiRITREEH
BREN  AARKEAAERR
TERZEE - RBEBH H
REZR/ZFERLITRERE
%Z*é%@?jt A ELAKE
REFREOT 2 EEELEE-

the banks are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting
date, no provision for the Group’s obligation under
the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the repayment of
the loans would be in default.

N
O
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M+— - BAKIE 41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
REBH ANEEE TIIRE At reporting date, the Group had outstanding capital
2 B AR commitments as follows:
2017 2016
F#ET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EREERETA: Authorised but not contracted for:
DERREMER Properties under development classified
BRB\YEERTZ under investment property and
BRAPYIE property under development - 12,135
BRI 4B AR Contracted but not provided for:
L EN NS Property, plant and equipment 696 3
DERREMER Properties under development classified
BRBYEERTZ under investment property and
BRAPYIE property under development - 1,350
HASREEEEERFE Properties under development
FRETIE DR classified under investment property
WEMHEE N 2 RABYE  undertaken by joint ventures
attributable to the Group - 265
696 13,753
m+= - KEHEKRE 42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
REENKEHELHEAET The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
M AEMERBIER- staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
HE(BRIAER)REEE (including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate or
TR RE LK TR - AR with reference to level of business and terms ranging from
—Z2=F(ZE—R"F:—F= one to three years (2016: one to three years), with an option
F)NE WREER DA B 5 to renew the leases and renegotiate the terms at the expiry
AEEHEEEAETHEEBTEL date or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
HERBETHE R EEE G e respective landlords.

N
N
(e)
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m+= - REBAERE & 42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(continued)

RZZB—+FA=+H & As at 30 June 2017, the Group had future aggregate

ARG E R E 2 B BB - minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

SERRFEHEERNRAT leases falling were due as follows:

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
—F R Within one year 2,654 3,039
FE_EZFRF(BEEEME) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 3,986 1,135
6,640 4,174
m+= FAEALTRS 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRIAARE B 75 R 5 H M2 5 B Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

BEIN AEERFERNETSH statements, during the year, the Group entered into the

BALRS- following related party transactions.

@ REEZZ—t&<H () During the year ended 30 June 2017, imputed
;JrEIJtEF; R B interest expenses of HK$3,613,000 (2016:
—FHERELT2EREZ HK$3,662,000) were incurred to a related company
FERNREEESNE of which is wholly-owned by Dr. Chan.
23,613,000 7T (=
= — N 3,662,000
TL) °

(b) RBEE-_ZE—+tF~H (b) During the year ended 30 June 2017, imputed
=tHILEE KXEE interest expenses of HK$1,325,000 (2016:
H—HBaRETEEE HK$1,741,000) were incurred to a related company
ERFTEEEBAECZH of which Dr. Chan is a director and key management
BEARELEESNE personnel.

Fi 51,325,000 7T (=
=T —KNF 1 1,741,000%
JC) °

N
N
—
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N
N

m+=

BEALRS »)

RBEZZT—tF A
=THIEFE K~EE5H
ERERREH#ZERE
/AR ELZF B
X 5797,0005% 7T (=
T — 754 12,080,000
JT) °

REBEEZZFT—tF~A
=+HIEFE AEEB
/P — R R AR R
TESER/ Kzt rE
HEZBERT ZFE
f & £870,0007% 7T ( =
T — N4 11,637,000

JC) °

TEETE A SR

SPARERAMRAS TR
BB A BHRMEIETHIE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, interest
expenses of HK$797,000 (2016: HK$2,080,000)
were paid/payable to Dr. Chan in relation to the loan
from a controlling shareholder.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, interest
expenses of HK$870,000 (2016: HK$1,637,000)
were paid/payable to a related company of which
is wholly-owned by Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, an
executive director of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee benefit expenses are key
management personnel compensation and comprise

H: the following:
2017 2016
FiET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RHEE R Short term employee benefits 14,500 14,490
BER R R A Post-employment benefits 596 502
ARG 15 A EE 2 B Share-based compensation 2,140 2,390
17,236 17,382
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m+=-BREALRS @ 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
f) Hu B M BT B f) Included in other payables and accruals, an amount
P B 1 AN R AR R AR of HK$2,564,000 (2016: HK$2,564,000) was due
A A 5XI82,564,00078 T to ultimate holding company, which is unsecured,
(ZZ—734% : 2,564,000 interest-free and repayable on demand.
BIL)  AREEAR 28
RBRERER -
B s PO+ =(a) * U+ =(b) * The related party transaction in respect of note 43(a), 43(b),
P9+ =(c)* U+ =(d) &+ =(f) 43(c), 43(d) and 43(f) also constitute connected transactions
Pt 2 B8 A+ 5 IMERK £ as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
RAETHAZF AT 2 BER
2o
M+m - EERR 5 B 44. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
NP ZERE IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
= OR CONTRACTS
BRE=+ -=+=-mW+= Except as disclosed in note 30, 33, 43(a), 43(c), 43(d)
(a) U+ =(c)- W+ =(d) & and 43(f), no transactions, arrangements or contracts
M= EEIN RAER of significance in relation to the Company's business to
R BEREABRERAAT 2% which the Company was a party and in which a director of
BTGB AN RIEFHEE S the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
MEREPHERE AR 2 AR indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during the financial
BEARG  LHHEH - year.

N
N
W
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M+ - HE—REMBAR 45. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

N
D

RZE—RFNATILAE &
Bl —thEEWZ ([EEH
&) Bl ARERER—F
BUE=FHEEHEERRA
A ([FEE]  ARAzHEEE
MIE AR 2B ARE R & &
FEHEXBASEZARRAER
4 (8 41,133,500,000% 7T * 78
REKEHEZERFMEZ=E
EEEE ([HEFE])2AH
ERLEESEEARETEER
BEEDAEARERARE
133,500,000/ JT °

RZZE—A"F+—A=1+H" &
%% Emﬁ iR B =

ETHABRGZEREHABRE
7,%993,627,000/% Lo E =R
BRIEFTEALERS E—F
HERBEBBHAE-ZT—X F+A
ZHN\BZBEHAKE-

On 19 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “S&P"”) pursuant to which
the Group has agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Well Friendship Investment Limited (“Well Friendship”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and to
assign the inter-group loans owing by Well Friendship to
the Group to an independent third party at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,133,500,000, subject to adjustments
on certain assets and liabilities and the reduction of a total
consideration of HK$133,500,000 upon the completion of
the sale of the 3 pre-sold floors of under property under
development as at the completion date of the disposal
(“Disposal”).

On 30 November 2016, the Disposal was completed and
the adjusted consideration received was HK$993,627,000
after adjustment in accordance with the S&P. The Disposal
constituted a very substantial disposal transaction and
further details were disclosed in the circular dated 28
October 2016.
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m+4 - HE—FEHEBLRF
()

FERHERKAH (ZF—X
FT—A=ZTHIZFEE (T
BRE-EREEE) T

45. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The net assets of Well Friendship (exclusion of the 3 pre-

sold floors) at the completion date of the disposal on 30

November 2016 were as follows:

FET

HK$°000
FRHEEE(&fK): Assets/(Liabilities) disposed of:
TEYZE Investment property 477,830
BREPYE Property under development 488,559
TEMFUIE L& N EMEWFIE  Prepayment, deposits and other receivables 462
RekReEnm Cash and cash equivalents 479
RITER Bank loans (242,370)
NEIEER Inter-company loans (195,955)
Hith N RIBRETE A Other payable and accruals (2,850)
I8 Taxation (4,545)
BEFE Net assets 521,610
LS BHEERITER Repayment of bank loan in connection

with the Disposal* 242,370

HE RRIREER Disposal of inter-company loans 195,955
RHETT & FIERFE & 2 AR Cost incurred during Disposal 11,401
HE—BRB ARz s Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 22,291

993,627
IATRFIIE B 22 KRB : Consideration satisfied by:
e Cash 993,627
& RITERERTREME S o The bank loan was settled upon the receipt of part of the

WER R D BB B

consideration from the purchaser upon completion.

N
ul
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45. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(&)

ERLESE R RESEHE The analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

MAFBEAITT : in respect of the Disposal is as follows:
F#ET
HK$'000
ERRERE Cash consideration received 993,627
FILERE RS ER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (479)
RIETTHEE BIERFE 4 2 R Cost incurred by the Group during disposal (11,401)

EREESHE RE R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

ReFRRNHE in respect of the Disposal 981,747

M+7< » MFEREREEE
EHR

AEBEZETZSRTABER
TEE T —BEeEErEZE
?&f”%f‘ﬂ&‘fhﬁ*ﬁzé&ﬁf@
JEWHIE ReRREEFRE £

S ERFRIE - ﬁ@ﬂ’%ﬁﬂﬁ&%
FEACRITER HeghE
ZES TESBRTE @AM
B EAEEQRIRIE 2
BRI ER R I EIERE
E-zEeMmT A ZFIBENEH
MERZE EHZEem I ERH
Z BB RORE 7% R B 2 TR K
NI BEESIEHRERZ
—rﬂlgﬁ ’ L/UVJE1%HE EHY&EJ@@
HITEE RS-

46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, loans to a joint venture, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables, other payables and accruals, bank loans,
balances with joint ventures, derivative financial instruments,
obligation under finance leases, amounts due to related
companies, loan from a controlling shareholder and financial
guarantee liabilities. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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M55~ B EREE BiE 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUER (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
46.1 ZRIEERTHEEER 46.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities
REMBIRARANZES 2 The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
FHESBEIRATEME statement of financial position relate to the
EXcmBEREN -7F2 following categories of financial assets and financial
BIMIFE3.12 3. 15 A B i liabilities. See notes 3.12 and 3.15 for explanations
SR T H 2 MR about how the category of financial instruments
HEE&er=- affects their subsequent measurement.
2017 2016
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EMEE Financial assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
AL E 7SR EZE  Available-for-sale financial assets 15,285 22,393
B EWFIE Loans and receivables:
— B F—HAEMEEZ - Loans to a joint venture
Ex 676,140 664,640
MBEE Current assets
LAAF{EET AEZE 2 Financial assets at fair value
TRIEE through profit or loss 5,770 4,222
ESmTA Derivate financial instruments - 99
ESR R ERFIE : Loans and receivables:
— & S5 EWFIE — Trade receivables 96,085 93,231
— e REMBEUTIE — Deposits and other receivables 5,821 10,534
— WA EEFKIE -~ Due from joint ventures 16 167
—RERRESEHE — Cash and cash equivalents 374,648 45,632
476,570 149,564
1,173,765 840,918

N
N
~
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M+75 - BB EREERR 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
RBR (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
46.1 RIEERTHEEER 46.1 Categories of financial assets and financial
(&) liabilities (continued)
2017 2016
F#T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLERE Financial liabilities
REARE Current liabilities
R ATTE 2 Financial liabilities measured at
%Eﬁﬁﬁ : amortised cost:
E S EMFRIE — Trade payables (58,703) (126,705)
—ﬁﬂﬂfgﬁ KIB K — Other payables and accruals (40,067) (35,898)
fEstE M
—iRITEN — Bank loans (119,000) (571,548)
—JEfEAEARIFIE - Due to related companies (576) (2,744)
—EREAYERIR ML 2 B - Loan from a controlling shareholder (4,606) =
— B E AR — Obligation under finance leases (377) (379)
— B IERAE — Financial guarantee liabilities (7,216) (3,411)
(230,545) (740,685)
UAFEFABRZZ Financial liabilities at fair value
PRIBE: through profit or loss:
—TESmTA — Derivative financial instruments (143) =
(230,688) (740,685)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
REENATEZ Financial liabilities measured at
THRAGE: amortised cost:
— BB EAIE — Obligation under finance leases (314) (691)
—JEMEIERARIFIE - Due to related companies (82,036) (165,346)
—EREE — Financial guarantee liabilities (9,921) (2,245)
— PR IE R IRME 2 &3 — Loan from a controlling shareholder = (131,670)
(92,271) (299,952)
(322,959) (1,040,637)
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.1 Categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities (continued)

The financial assets and financial liabilities measured

at amortised costs approximate fair values.

46.2 Market risk

()

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that
the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the
United Kingdom and the Mainland China
with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, United States dollars
("US$"), British Pounds, Canadian Dollars
(“CAD") and RMB. No foreign currency
risk has been identified for the financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies
of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments
including available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and derivative financial
instruments which are denominated in
US$, Euro, British Pounds and CAD. During
the years, the Group did not have foreign
currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure.

N
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
Group’s major financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group
companies as at 30 June 2017 and 2016.

T & TR
Expressed in HK$'000
EH B 3 i
British
us$ Euro Pounds CAD
RZF—t&~A=1H At 30 June 2017
AEEE s SREE Available-for-sale financial
assets - - - 2,270
B S EMGIR Trade receivables 84,747 686 10,288 =
ReRkReEH Cash and cash equivalents 59,215 61 5,112 21
BARMA Trade payables (48,594) (108) (18) -
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - (143) -
ERTER Overall net exposure 95,368 639 15,239 2,291
RZE-REXA=1H At 30 June 2016
AEPEsSREE Available-for-sale financial
assets 7,753 - - 2,890
BRI Trade receivables 80,538 1,221 9913 =
ReRkReEH Cash and cash equivalents 24,742 932 5,423 1,158
BoEMHE Trade payables (102,637) (90) (255) =
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 99 -
ERFRR Overall net exposure 10,396 2,063 15,180 4,048
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 TR (&) 46.2 Market risk (continued)
() srEERE () () Foreign currency risk (continued)
B € T B T B As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does
8 AR B TER = not expect any significant movements in
TTHABTLZERSE the US$/HK$ exchange rates. No sensitivity
EHEFRNEREF- analysis in respect of the Group's financial
EERA BARKE assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
BEARE B AEITEHE disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
ZEMEERBESR sensitivity analysis does not give additional
B2 BREREDN R value in view of insignificant movement in
FHERERSE B the US$/HK$ exchange rates as at reporting
TR ST 2 E R B E) date. The following table indicates the
IR WZEHRE approximate change in the Group's profit/
oA I SR IME (loss) for the year and equity in response to
B TREBREER reasonably possible changes in the foreign
Rl = PN S PP exchange rates to which the Group has
X8 AN E gz INEETE significant exposure at the reporting date.
K2 EEAIEES -
REBZFANBF,
(E518) R Al aE
W ES -
2017 2016
SEEE  HENER NEEE  HERBEZ
Lt/ (T%) k47 4 ## R/ (TH) e B
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange profit for exchange loss for
rates the year Equity rates the year Equity
FéET FET FAT FET
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
B Euro +5% 7 7 +5% 103 103
5% (32) (32) 5% (103) (103)
s Brish Pounds +5% 762 762 +5% 759 759
5% (762) (762) 5% (759) (759)
7 CAD +5% 1 115 +5% 58 0
5% ) (115) 5% (59) (202)

No
w
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M+« HFEREE B E 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
RBR (&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
46.2 TR (&) 46.2 Market risk (continued)
() shEsEfE () (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

BUBE S H T RSN
W R 3R
B8 B R A H A
B TR TR -

PRy )i &I BT
BINEEXREET
—fEFEHRE BHLE
B r e iR 2 &8

AEEBREFEN
K—EETERINE
R 2 R - R
AEBRRB

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the reporting
dates and that all other variables remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the
fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of change
in market price (other than changes in
interest rate and foreign exchange rate).
The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, or available-for-sale.
The board of directors manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 30 June 2017, if equity prices had
increased/(decreased) by 10% and all other
variables were held constant:

- the Group's profit for the year would
increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$577,000 (2016: loss would
decrease/(increase) by approximately
HK$422,000). This is mainly due to
the changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; and

N
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Equity price risk (continued)

- the Group’s equity other than
retained profits would increase/
(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,105,000 (2016: increase/
(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,041,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
investments included in the Group's
available-for-sale financial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had occurred
at the reporting dates and has been applied
to the Group's investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank balances and bank borrowings.
Majority of the bank borrowings are
arranged at variable rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting
dates are disclosed in note 28.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

N
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.2 Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity
of the profit/(loss) for the year and retained
profits to a change in interest rates of +100
basis point and —100 basis point (2016:
+100 basis point and —100 basis point)
with effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group's
bank balances and interest-bearing bank
borrowings held at each reporting date
which are subject to variable interest rates.
All other variables are held constant.

PR o
2017 2016
F#ET FAET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
fis F| & _EFH100MEZ2E I interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ—RF: (2016: 100 basis point) higher
1001E £ 2h)
FER4GER], (E18F58) Net profit/(loss) for the year and
KR B8 4 FIJ3E 0 retained profits increased by 2,499 (2,605)
fiK F| B T BR100MEZ 2L If interest rates were 100 basis point
—E—RF: (2016: 100 basis point) lower
1001E £ 2h)
FER4GA], (E18F5) Net profit/(loss) for the year and
R AR i ARk retained profits decreased by (2,499) 2,605
REBBEBEFEN The policies to manage interest rate risk have
W—E%?%ﬂ% Fl= been followed by the Group since prior years
B 2B WREB are considered to be effective.

EZﬁIEﬁZ RA R o
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.3 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instruments and cause a financial loss to the
Group. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
senior management compiles the credit and risk
management policies, to approve credit limits and
to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount for each individual
account receivables at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the board of
directors considers that the Group’s credit risk is

effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as 36.8% (2016: 34.4%) of the
Group's trade receivables which were due from
one of the Group's largest customers within the
design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of the

jewellery and diamonds segment.

Save as the aforesaid concentration of credit risk, the
Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number
of counterparties and customers. The Group is also
exposed to the credit risk of the contingent liabilities
in relation to the financial guarantee contracts
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of a joint
venture as detailed in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.

N
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.3

46.4

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as
cash is deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group'
exposure to credit risk arising from long term and
trade receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as the long-term receivables as detailed in
note 21(a), none of the Group's financial assets are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will
not able to meet its obligation associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows
in the short and long term. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

AEBEBBEFEUAR—
BEETREBESHR I
R EBRAMEER
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Rk B2 FBRE O
HHIR - R IR EBASE
B R R BB R &
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BEBRERMNEGFELZ
B MRS
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ZRITEFRME DT
FRERHIERERR
BERRBRER  AIRK
ERAZERENFKEE
RZ BAGITHERN 2 X R 1
] o

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risk.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, for bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect.

N
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.4 HEELREMRE (&) 46.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
AHRER
RERE —ERNE —ENE
REEHE a8  BRERKEE  EORWE WEN L
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years
T FET FET FAT FAT
HK 000 HK 000 HK 000 HK000 HK$'000
RZF—tEXA=1H Asat30June 2017
FiiteMaR: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
B SRR Trade payables 58,703 58,703 58,703 - -
EffEBRIERER Other payables and accruals 40,067 40,067 40,067 - -
HERERE Obligation under finance leases 691 22 399 323 -
RITER Bank loans 119,000 119,000 119,000 - -
ERBEARRE Due to related companies 82,612 92,258 576 91,682 -
PRBEREZES  Loan from a controling shareholder 4,606 4,606 4,606 - -
305,679 315,356 223,351 92,005 -
BEYZHBER: Financial guarantee issued:
RAERER Maximum amount guaranteed 17,137 412,763* 412,763+ - =
RZF—7~EAXAZ1H Asat30June 2016
FiitemaR: Non-derivative financial liabilities:
B SRR Trade payables 126,705 126,705 126,705 - -
Ef e 5 ERIERER Other payables and accruals 35,898 35,898 35,898 = =
HERERE Obligation under finance leases 1,070 1,143 421 m =
RITER Bank loans 571,548 571,548 571,548 - -
ERBEARTE Due to related companies 168,090 184,988 2,744 92,260 89,984
PRBEREZER  Loan from a controling shareholder 131,670 134,051 1,905 132,146 -
1,034,981 1,054,333 739,221 225128 89,984
BEYHBER: Financial guarantee issued:
RAERER Maximum amount guaranteed 5,656 433,769* 433,769* - -
* fHIRTREEWEEEE o The Group would be liable to pay the bank if the

KBRS E R AR

TERZEME-

bank is unable to recover the loans.



Annual Report 2017 “F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements m %25 B8RS Mz

For the year ended 30 June 2017
HE_Z—+FRA=THILFE

M55~ B EREE BiE 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUER (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
464 HREE£REMK (£) 46.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

TERBLMM B IR E B The table that follows summarises the maturity
&2 SRITE R Z BHRH analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand
AT LTI ERE R B clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
FrEz W EERLHE - & out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
HBFEAEHONEFEZ interest payments computed using contractual rates.
FERK - ZBERBANEEH Taking into account the Group's financial position,
2B EFRBIR the directors do not consider that it is probable
TP RAI B TR H E kA that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
RrERZHIERE - 5548 immediate repayment. The directors believe that
5 BBRTEFTH SR such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
BENRBEES . TEEE the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
KEHEE- agreements.

HE RS -REREER BRI MAERERERR L RITEFN
Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

AHRME
RENE —Epn —ENE
REEH BE REKEE BORWE MEN L
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
amount cashflow  on demand 2 years 2 years

TET TiET T TET THET
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

RZF—tEXA=1H Asat30June 2017
FITER Bank loans 119,000 122,359 101,869 20,490 =

RZF-AFRAZ+H Asat30June 2016
ROTEH Bank loans 571,548 585,800 558,890 5273 21,637

[N)
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the instruments and
derivatives, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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M55~ B EREE BiE 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RBUER (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
46.5 REESHBERRRERZ 46.5 Fair value measurements recognised in the
RNEEFE (F) consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
TREERBEREMS The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
AZ A EREER Ty the financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its
BEH AT EFEARSE entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
AEEZHEERBAE is significant to the fair value measurement. The
B - NiZa MBI &R financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
BEATHEFECERMEE in the consolidated statement of financial position
KBERATERBEZS are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
BT
F1E #2E $3JE @5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAL FHET FAT TAL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
(HizH@) (HizE()) (K@)
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

RZF—tEAAZ+H Asat30June 2017
e SREE Available-for-sale financial assets

~ERBEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 8,784 - - 8,784
—TEBIN L ZIRAES - Equity securities listed in overseas 2,270 - - 2,270

BIEEEZ EM&EH:  Listed securities held for trading:

~ERBEMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 5,770 - - 5,770
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - (143) - (143)
16,824 (143) - 16,681

RIFE—R"EAAZTH Asat30June 2016
e SREAE Available-for-sale finandial assets

—ERBLMZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 7,519 = - 7,519
—EBSNETIZRAES -~ Equity securities listed in overseas 2,890 = - 2,890

BEBE 2 EMES:  Listed securities held for trading:

—EBB LM ZRAES - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 422 = = 4222
fTESRTE Derivative financial instruments = 99 - 9
14,631 99 - 14,730

[N)
J=
W
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H

m—+75 - B EEREIEBE
BEHR #)

46.5 REFEPBKRRRERZ
DNREE ()

AR EATEZ AR
o (ST B A 25 AR
AR S Bk o

Bt

(a)

ERRAESZRFE
TR2EHERHE RS
ZTHBRETE  WERR
= HIR 2 B ER SN s i o
BE (HER) -

TESMIAZAFE
DERBEOTAZ AR
MiSME - ERHER
istE METMEER
BAEHERREEE
NGIRSEECE 6 o

FAFIE 2 A K E 2R
BEBRZAERN - T)
RIRIA FEA R B R 35
BERELEZEERHA
=K

FR-BIBEFE2EZME
W EAFHEFESR 7T
EIAB B ARE L E3E

T NFE) o

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

46.5

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(a)

Fair values of listed equity securities have been
determined by reference to their market prices at
the reporting date and have been translated using
the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period where appropriate.

Fair values of derivative financial instruments are
measured using quoted prices in active markets for
similar instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

The Group’s financial assets classified in Level 3
use valuation technique based on significant inputs
that are not based on observable market data.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).
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M+t - EXREE 47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

REEEREBE HEZB R AR The primary objective of the Group's capital management
REFRECEETREERL is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
A FHHEEBREREEER healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
RAZER- shareholders’ value.
AEEEEHEERER WEE The Group manages its capital structure and makes
KA B ENE TR - BHERE adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
o} AR E AR NEE A AR conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
MERREZ N ZK’E  mRFEE Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
BERNBEITHRGD -NAFE return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
MBEFE  AEEMESRE changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
= BUEREAR T o during the current and previous years.

o
N
[l
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M+t - EXEE 2 47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

PN
fox)

AEBERAEERBL X (AE
TR F RRRR ARE aR BRI E S F
B)ERER - BHRFBINERE
PATEARR R PR 2 $R1T R L AE
BRBERRE IR EHAE -
AEESFEREERRBLRER
REBKF-BEXZRA ~EE
K& Rz EEABL R
REEKF RREEMZEE
BELLENT

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings

less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated

statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain

the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors

are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio was

maintained at reasonable level at the reporting date. The

gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

2017 2016
F#ET FET
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
nBaR Current liabilities
RITERK Bank loans 119,000 571,548
FE 1~ B8 A Rl 5K IE Due to related companies 576 2,744
PR R IR 2 B Loan from a controlling shareholder 4,606 =
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
FEAST R A A F A Due to related companies 82,036 165,346
ERR R R 2 ER Loan from a controlling shareholder - 131,670
fBIAAERR Total debts 206,218 871,308
R e RIREER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (374,648) (45,632)
IR HEE Net debts (168,430) 825,676
A RE Total equity 1,844,465 1,723,941
e AR FE R AR TEHRE Total equity and net debts 1,676,035 2,549,617
BEEAMBILE Gearing ratio &R N/A 32.4%
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m+)\ « SR HEEEE 48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

RZE—tFEA+ER TR
A—EZ2EMB ARG —HH
& ([ZHazl) - A Ontrack
Ventures Limited ([ B 22 &) ] -
—ERREBEZFHS T
ZHEBRARE) PR
BRZ & TR BIREAR 4
RZARIHEER RERER
1,180,000,0007% 7t ( 7] 4% AR 7%
WEEE THE) BEAAZ
MBARMNEZEERS BN
BB (T 823258 2 b1 - ;% 1%
FELHBEN ARG HHACZT
—tFt A+ NBZREREE
RIE—tFHALA+THAZA
A WEESTRTRAIR =T —+
F+A-+HBZEK-

m+h - #ERBHRE

BE_ZT—tFAA=1THILLF
BZEaMBEREEN_F—+
FRAZ+RNBEZER4AET

%o

49,

On 17 July 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an agreement (the “Agreement”) to
acquire all the equity interest of Ontrack Ventures Limited
(the “Target Company”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, together with the
inter-company loan owing by the Target Company at the
completion of the Agreement, at cash consideration of
HK$1,180 million (which is subject to certain adjustments
in accordance with the Agreement). The principal asset of
the subsidiary of the Target Company is a piece of land
located on No. 232 Wan Chai Road, Hong Kong. The
details of the Agreement were set out in the announcement
and the circular of the Company dated 18 July 2017 and
25 September 2017 respectively. The completion of the
acquisition is expected to be completed on 25 October
2017.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2017 were approved for issue by the directors on 26
September 2017.

N
~
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AEEBERABETBRFREZREENUR
BE BEMEEGZEME (FiE
MR AMEEZVBRE L ED
(@) ) EFINT LA Z I AR
REGEAMBHREZ 8D -

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the respective published audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

¥4 RESULTS
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$000 — HKS$000
Wz Revenue 627,293 552,575 730,900 868,103 949,215
BRETETATER,/ (BE) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 102,549  (186,055) 65,158 51,971 87,660
FiEH (X)) /#KE Income tax (expense)/credit (4,098) 10,363 76,179 (1,232) (1,303)
FREF/ (B8) Profit/(Loss) for the year 98,451  (175692) 141,337 50,739 86,357
JEE IR Non-controlling interests (145) 26 234 (159) (510)
RAREAE AESELF,/ Net profit/(loss) attributable to
(BEFE) the owners of the Company 98,306  (175666) 141571 50,580 85,847
EE BERIEEFES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
FHET FET FET FET FET
HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000
BEE Total assets 2,314,865  2,954644 3,097,489 2,866,683 2,758,770
BafE Total liabilities (470,400) (1,230,703) (1,099,418) (1,020,457)  (973,362)
Il Non-controlling interests 6,398 6,156 6,130 5,896 6,055
1,850,863 1,730,097 2,004,201 1,852,122 1,791,463
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